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Fertile land, plentiful sunshine, and bountiful showers—since ancient times, the 

Japanese have valued bounties nurtured in their rice paddy fields as an irreplaceable 

treasure. Originally meaning grain harvested from the fields, the name Takara* 

resonates powerfully with the values of the Japanese as a people that agriculture  

has sustained from generation to generation. Thus, depending on the Chinese  

character used, in Japanese the word takara can mean “treasure” or “from the rice 

paddy field.”

 The Takara Group has unlocked new potential in the culinary, lifestyle, and life 

science fields through our fermentation technologies for traditional Japanese sake 

and our cutting-edge innovation in biotechnologies. Going forward, we will con-

tinue to benefit society by creating new value as well as providing products and 

services rooted in our long-standing affinity with nature.

*Source: Daigenkai; Fumihiko Otsuki; Fuzanbo

Takara (treasure): 
Precious stones, earthenware, money, or other property that is carefully 
stored under a roof



1Takara Holdings inc.   annual reporT 2012

contributing to the creation of a vital society and a healthy  
lifestyle through our fermentation technology and biotechnology 
in a way that achieves harmony with nature

1842 company is founded.

1897 Takara logo is registered as trademark.

1925 Takara shuzo co., ltd. (predecessor of Takara Holdings inc.), is established.

1949 Takara shuzo is listed on the Tokyo stock exchange.

1979 Japan’s first restriction enzymes are launched, starting the Biomedical business.

1982 local production of sake is begun in the united states.

1993 long-term management concept Takara innovation-21 (Ti-21) is launched.

2000 long-term management concept Takara evolution-100 (Te-100) is launched.

2002
company is transferred to holding company structure.
Takara Holdings inc. is established.

2004 Takara Bio inc. is listed on Mothers board of the Tokyo stock exchange.

2006 group’s businesses are reorganized, and Takara Healthcare inc. is established.

2011
long-term management vision Takara group Vision 2020 is launched.
Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014 is launched.

corporate philosophy

Takara group Milestones
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as a pure holding company, Takara Holdings inc. maximizes its business results by coordinating 
and controlling the management of all group companies under its umbrella. These are the  
Takara shuzo group, which develops the alcoholic beverages and seasonings business; the  
Takara Bio group, which advances the Biomedical business; and Takara Healthcare, which acceler-
ates growth in the Health foods business.
 Based on this holding company structure, the Takara group has built a unique, robust business 
portfolio. it combines a core business that generates stable earnings, the alcoholic beverages and 
seasonings business, with highly promising growth businesses, the Biomedical business and the 
Health foods business.
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Business structure

Business lines

The Takara group’s core business, the Takara shuzo group, has developed the alco-
holic beverages and seasonings business since the Takara group’s foundation. For 170 
years, the Takara shuzo group has marketed reliable products supported by sound 
technology. its lineup spans a broad range of product categories, including shochu, 
sake, light-alcohol refreshers, wine, whisky, chinese alcoholic beverages, seasonings, 
and raw alcohol. Moreover, it rolls out these products not only in Japan but also in 
markets worldwide, through subsidiaries in the united states, china, and europe.

Takara shuzo group

The Takara Bio group strives to contribute to the health of humankind by develop-
ing revolutionary biomedical technologies, such as gene therapy. The mainstay of the 
Takara Bio group’s technology and earnings is the genetic engineering research busi-
ness, which provides stable earnings. Meanwhile, the Takara Bio group is fostering 
the agribio business as a second earnings mainstay. Further, the Takara Bio group is 
working to commercialize gene and cell therapies by investing management resourc-
es in the gene medicine business.

Takara Bio group

Takara Healthcare utilizes the Takara group’s unique ingredients and technologies to 
provide its customers with safe, reliable health foods, thereby helping people to live 
healthy, active lives. using ingredients that Takara Bio has developed, Takara Healthcare 
develops products and sells them mainly through direct marketing activities and 
mail-order sales. By pursuing such initiatives, Takara Healthcare creates synergies 
within the Takara group and accelerates the growth of the Health foods business.

Takara Healthcare

alcoholic beverages and 
seasonings business

Health foods businessBiomedical business

Takara Holdings inc.

Takara shuzo group Takara Healthcare

other 
subsidiaries

Takara Bio group

> For details, please see page 28.

> For details, please see page 29.

> For details, please see page 29.
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Forward-looking statements
statements in this report, other than those based on historical fact, concern-
ing the current plans, prospects, strategies, and expectations of the company 
and its group companies represent forecasts of future results, or forward-
looking statements. While such statements are based on the conclusions of 
management according to information available at the time of writing, they 
reflect many assumptions and opinions derived from information that in-
cludes major risks and uncertainties. actual results may vary significantly 
from these forecasts due to various factors.
 Factors that could influence actual results include, but are not limited 
to, economic conditions, especially trends in consumer spending, as well as 
exchange rate fluctuations, changes in laws and government systems, pres-
sure from competitors’ prices and product strategies, declines in selling 
power of the company’s existing and new products, disruptions to produc-
tion, violations of the company’s intellectual property rights, rapid advanc-
es in technology, and unfavorable verdicts in major litigation.
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roadmap for realizing the Takara group Vision 2020

Establish a balanced
business structure that is readily

adaptable to changing conditions

Takara Group
Medium-Term

Management Plan FY2014

• Achieve stable growth 
 in Japan

• Expand business base 
 for significant growth 
 overseas

FY2012 
(April 2011)

FY2014 �scal year-end
 (March 2014)

Ten years from April 2011

Realization of
the Takara Group

Vision 2020

1st Step

2nd Step

3rd Step

long-Term Management Vision—
Takara group Vision 2020

grow businesses in markets in Japan and overseas in which  
the group can leverage its strengths, establish a balanced business structure  
that is readily adaptable to changing conditions

aiming to raise its long-term corporate value, the Takara group has moved group management 
forward based on medium-term management plans prepared in order to realize long-term manage-
ment concepts. These efforts have steadily expanded the Takara group’s business base.
 From april 2011, the Takara group has been seeking sustained growth based on a new long-
term management vision (the Takara group Vision 2020) and a new medium-term management 
plan (the Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014), which sets out the first step 
toward realizing the vision.
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Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014

develop corporate culture/personnel

core Business
strengthen profitability of core business as foundation 
of group’s growth

growth 
Businesses

expand businesses in markets promising growth, drive 
the group’s overall growth

developing 
Businesses

establish operational foundation in growth markets to 
create the growth businesses for the next plan

Financial policy

promote social and environmental activitiesstrengthen group’s Management Base

positioning of Businesses and Business policies

domestic alcoholic beverages business

seasonings and raw alcohol business

overseas alcoholic beverages business, 
Japanese food ingredients wholesale business

gene medicine business

Health foods business

genetic engineering research business

covering the period through 2020, our long-term management vision, the Takara group Vision 2020, calls on us to grow 
businesses in markets in Japan and overseas where we can leverage our strengths while establishing a balanced business 
structure that is readily adaptable to changing conditions. as the first step on the way to realizing this goal, we prepared the 
Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014. under this plan, we aim to achieve stable growth in Japan while 
expanding our business base in order to grow significantly overseas.

aiming to realize the Takara group Vision 2020, achieve stable growth in Japan 
while expanding business base in order to grow significantly overseas

Basic policy

While maintaining a sound financial position, the group aims to invest in both growth and 
developing businesses, return profits to shareholders actively, and increase roe (return on equity).
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Tangible goals for Final Fiscal Year (Fiscal 2014)

raise level of net sales and operating income (Millions of Yen)

consolidated net sales at least ¥200 billion

consolidated operating 
income at least ¥10 billion

11.3 14.3
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0
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9

consolidated net sales

up 5.4% 

consolidated  
operating income

up 20.0%

expand business base in order to grow significantly overseas

overseas sales at least ¥20 billion

overseas sales as a 
percentage of net sales at least 10% 10.0%

7.8%

14.3

11.3

11.3 14.3

20
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00

14
,7

16

overseas sales

up 35.9%

overseas sales as a percentage 
of net sales 

up 2.2 percentage points

expand growth businesses and establish foundations of developing businesses

net sales of growth 
businesses and 
developing businesses

at least ¥50 billion

net sales of growth 
businesses and 
developing businesses as 
a percentage of net sales 

at least 25%
25.0%
14.3

11.3
21.0%

11.3 14.3

50
,0

00

39
,8

95

net sales of growth businesses 
and developing businesses

Up 25.3%

net sales of growth businesses 
and developing businesses as a 
percentage of net sales 

up 4.0 percentage points
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Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014

initiatives by Business 

Low

High

Price range

Market scale

Premium
-range

products

Mid-range
products

sparkling sake  
Sho-Chiku-Bai Shirakabe-gura Mio
a combination of just the right amount of 
acidity with a hint of sweetness and enjoyably 
refreshing bubbles, the sparkling sake Sho-
Chiku-Bai Shirakabe-gura Mio is attracting at-
tention as a beverage that gives 
sake new appeal amid declining 
sake consumption volumes. 
 catering to preferences of 
men and women in their 20s 
and 30s, this sake is marketed 
in a comparatively small bot-
tle—enabling customers to en-
joy it as they would a chu-hi 
beverage—and has a low alco-
hol content and an easy-to-
drink slightly sweet flavor.

new premium-range product 
(launched June 2011)

Sho-Chiku-Bai Ten 900ml  
“eco pouch”
refreshingly dry with a distinctively rich, 
sharp flavor achieved through a unique two-
stage yeast fermentation process, Sho-Chiku-
Bai Ten has become a firm favorite of many 
customers since launching in 2003.
 The Sho-Chiku-Bai 
Ten 900ml “eco pouch” 
is environment friendly 
because this original 
pouch-pack container 
uses approximately 50% 
less packaging than a 
cardboard carton for 
an equivalent volume.

new mid-range product 
(launched september 2011)

core Business 

domestic alcoholic beverages business   Takara shuzo group

growth Business 

expansion of overseas alcoholic  
beverages business

popularize Japanese cuisine worldwide through overseas alcoholic beverages business and Japanese 
food ingredients wholesale business and expand overseas business

establishment of sales network for Japanese  
food ingredients wholesaling

Build foundations for overwhelming  
no. 1 position in overseas sake market

• Grow sales and market share in Japanese restaurant market
• Expand presence in mass retail channels
• Provide stable supply of high-quality sake to markets worldwide

Build and extend sales network and accelerate expansion of 
business in european market

•  Expand European distribution network through FOODEX.
• Strengthen marketing to Japanese restaurants in Europe

overseas alcoholic beverages business, 
Japanese food ingredients wholesale business   Takara shuzo group

Business policy  generate stable cash flows and support the group’s growth

Business strategies  • new product development: develop highly original new products with differentiated quality
 • Brand nurturing: Foster array of powerful brands for premium-range and mid-range products
 • strengthen profitability: strengthen profit management and promote operational efficiency

Business policy   create a Japanese food ingredients wholesale network overseas and utilize synergies between the businesses to accelerate business 
growth and drive the group’s overall growth

Business strategies  •  expansion of overseas alcoholic beverages business: claim larger share of Japanese restaurant market and expand presence in mass 
retail channels

 •  establishment of sales network for Japanese food ingredients wholesaling: Build and extend overseas sales network
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growth Business 

seasonings and raw alcohol business   Takara shuzo group

growth Business 

genetic engineering research business   Takara Bio group

developing Business 

Health foods business   Takara Bio group   Takara Healthcare

developing Business 

gene medicine business   Takara Bio group

Therapies
preclinical trials/
clinical research

phase i clinical Trials phase ii clinical Trials phase iii clinical Trials commercialization

HsV-Tk gene therapy

HF10 anti-cancer therapy

MazF gene therapy

Tcr gene therapy

FY2018

phase i clinical trials underway in Japan (scheduled for completion in FY2013)

phase i clinical trials underway in the u.s. (scheduled for completion in FY2013)

phase i clinical trials underway in the u.s. (scheduled for completion in FY2016)

phase i clinical trials in Japan (next-generation vectors) (scheduled to commence in FY2014)

clinical research underway in Japan (scheduled for completion in FY2013)

Joint phase i and ii clinical trials in Japan and south korea (scheduled to commence in FY2014)

clinical research in Japan (next-generation vectors) (scheduled to commence in FY2013)

schedule for clinical development of gene medicine

 clinical trials    clinical research

Business policy   expand seasonings business for food processing and raw alcohol business while leveraging business integration to grow  
B-to-B operations

Business strategies  •  expanding seasonings business for food processing: Help customers solve problems by leveraging technological capabilities to 
develop products and advance solutions-based sales efforts

 •  expanding raw alcohol business: grow operations through new business model and increase profitability by establishing com-
petitive superiority

Business policy   develop core technologies and open up markets in Japan and overseas, including emerging countries, and increase sales and 
strengthen profitability further

Business strategies  •  shifting from genetic engineering to advanced cell biology: step up new product development in advanced cell biology field and 
advance tie-ups with companies promising technological synergies

 •  shifting from supporting academic research to supporting industry: develop application fields for gene-amplification technology 
(polymerase chain reaction (pcr) technology) 

 •  shifting from supporting basic research to supporting leading-edge research: develop research reagents for high-speed sequence 
analysis

Business policy   increase sales and establish a business foundation in preparation for dramatic growth

Business strategies  •  leverage Takara Bio’s technological capabilities to strengthen scientific evidence for health food ingredients
 •  invest effectively and efficiently to acquire customers for mail-order sales
 •  grow sales in B-to-B market

Business policy   advance clinical development with a view to commercializing Japan’s first ex vivo gene therapy and seek higher sales from cell-
therapy-related businesses

Business strategies  •  advance clinical development with a view to commercializing ex vivo gene therapies
 •  strengthen business supporting drug discovery by leveraging technology and expertise
 •  advance clinical development of cancer immunotherapy to strengthen scientific evidence
 •  increase sales of cell-therapy-related businesses (technical support services for cancer immunotherapy, cell culture media, and 

gas-permeable bags)

clinical research underway in Japan (scheduled for completion in FY2013)

FY2019

FY2023
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performance Highlights

Takara shuzo group

88.3%

Takara Bio group

9.9%

Takara Healthcare

1.2%

net sales
(Millions of Yen)

net sales

¥175,503 million
 (+5.2% YoY)

operating income

¥6,768 million
(+3.0% YoY)

¥198,690 million

(+4.7% YoY)

consolidated 
net sales ¥9,264 million

(+11.2% YoY)

consolidated  
operating income

net sales

¥19,578 million
(+4.5% YoY)

operating income

¥1,547 million
(+41.0% YoY)

net sales

¥2,338 million
(–8.9% YoY)

operating loss

¥114 million
(improved ¥137 million YoY)

net sales by Business 
segment

net sales
(Millions of Yen)

net sales by Business 
segment

net sales
(Millions of Yen)

net sales by Business 
segment

operating income
(Millions of Yen)

operating income
(Millions of Yen)

operating loss
(Millions of Yen)

Takara Holdings



11Takara Holdings inc.   annual reporT 2012

note:   The overview of business segments on this page corresponds to the company’s reporting segments. reporting segments are those segments of the Takara group for which discrete financial information can be 
obtained and that are subject to periodic examination by the group’s highest management decision-making body in order to determine the allocation of management resources and evaluate business results. The 
Takara group comprises three reporting segments: the Takara shuzo group, the Takara Bio group, and Takara Healthcare. Further, the business results of the printing business and other subsidiaries, net of 
intercompany eliminations, are included in “other” in the “consolidated Financial Highlights” on page 30 of this report.

 Jun.  2011 sparkling sake Sho-Chiku-Bai Shirakabe-gura Mio 
is launched.

 sep. Sho-Chiku-Bai Ten “eco pouch” is launched.

 oct. Shirashinken honkaku barley shochu Dokutsu 
Kame Chozo is launched.

 Mar.  2012 Kohaku no Yokaichi honkaku barley shochu is 
launched.

 Mar. MIN+ (“Mintas”) mint shochu is launched.

 apr.  2011

long-term management vision the Takara group 
Vision 2020 is launched.
The Takara group Medium-Term Management 
plan FY2014 is launched.

 dec. as a return to shareholders, 2.2 million shares of 
treasury stock (¥1,070 million) are acquired.

 May  2011 safety testing service for biopharmaceuticals is 
launched in Japan.

 Jun. Whole human genome sequence analysis service 
is launched.

 Jul. 

contract with kyoto university’s center for ips 
cell research and application (cira) in relation 
to the manufacture and supply of plasmid vectors 
for ips cell generation intended for use in clinical 
trials is concluded.

 oct. clinical development project for gene therapy 
targeting non-Hodgkin lymphoma is launched.

 Jan. 2012 sales contract with immuno-Biological laborato-
ries co., ltd., is concluded.

 Mar.
investigational new drug (ind) application for 
HiV gene therapy is submitted to u.s. Food and 
drug administration (Fda).

 Jun.  2011 renewed Glucosamin+agar-oligosaccharide is 
launched.

 oct. 
Agar Beauty Placenta beauty supplement that 
includes agar-derived agar-oligosaccharide is 
launched.

The Takara shuzo group saw a significant rise in revenue from light-alcohol 
refreshers and higher sales in all categories, except for hon mirin alcohol-based 
seasonings. These factors and a full-year contribution to business results from 
the group’s French subsidiary, FOODEX S.A.S., as a result of its inclusion as a 
consolidated subsidiary in the previous fiscal year, grew net sales 5.2% year on 
year, to ¥175,503 million.
 operating income was up 3.0% year on year, to ¥6,768 million, despite an 
increase in the cost of sales ratio due to raw material price hikes, higher transpor-
tation costs resulting from earthquake damage to distribution centers, and a rise 
in promotion expenses associated with stepped-up sales of shochu products and 
light-alcohol refreshers.

For fiscal 2012, ended March 31, 2012, Takara Holdings posted record consoli-
dated net sales, up 4.7% year on year, to ¥198,690 million, thanks to increases in 
revenues from the Takara shuzo group and the Takara Bio group.
 consolidated operating income rose 11.2% year on year, to ¥9,264 million, 
reflecting higher earnings from all reported segments.

performance overview

performance overview

Main initiatives

Main initiatives

The Takara Bio group’s mainstay genetic engineering research business saw 
strong growth in research reagent sales despite yen appreciation as well as higher 
sales of scientific instruments centered on mass spectrometry equipment. also, 
the gene medicine business generated favorable revenue from technical support 
services relating to cancer immunotherapy. and, the agribio business posted in-
creased revenue from mushroom products. as a result, net sales rose 4.5% year 
on year, to ¥19,578 million.
 operating income increased a steep 41.0% year on year, to ¥1,547 million, 
due to continuation of the previous fiscal year’s improvement in the cost of sales 
ratio and largely unchanged sg&a expenses.

performance overview Main initiatives

Takara Healthcare’s net sales declined 8.9% year on year, to ¥2,338 million, be-
cause a favorable performance by fucoidan-related products and the oeM (orig-
inal equipment manufacturer) business centered on hair care related products 
was unable to fully counteract lower sales in the tea beverage pB (private brand) 
supply business.
 gross profit rose 3.2% year on year, to ¥845 million, on increased sales of 
high-margin fucoidan-related products. operating loss improved ¥137 million 
year on year, to ¥114 million, as a result of multifaceted efforts to reduce sg&a 
expenses. Further, the operating losses of Takara Healthcare have resulted from 
forward-looking expenditure on advertising and promotion aimed at nurturing 
its health food products business.

performance overview Main initiatives
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a decade has passed since the Takara group transferred to a 
holding company system. during this time, we have paved the 
way for heightening corporate value even further.
 at this juncture, we have rejuvenated our senior management 
team, which is tasked with rapidly establishing a balanced  
business structure that is readily adaptable to changing  
conditions.

From left: Hisashi ohmiya, chairman, and Toshio kakimoto, president
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The general shareholders’ Meeting on June 28, 2012, saw the inception of a new 

senior management team, with former president Hisashi ohmiya becoming chair-

man and former vice president Toshio kakimoto becoming president.

 prior to assuming his new position as chairman, Hisashi ohmiya led the  

Takara group as its president for 19 years, including a period heading the man-

agement team of Takara shuzo co., ltd., the predecessor of Takara Holdings inc. 

during this time, the Takara shuzo group built a system that develops and nur-

tures products with differentiated quality and laid the foundations of business 

management that generates stable earnings while enabling forays overseas and 

into other growth areas. similarly, the Takara Bio group—established based on 

operations begun by Hisashi ohmiya and listed in 2004 to realize further growth—

has succeeded in building a business management platform that promises to  

grow earnings stably while investing in r&d. as a result, the Takara Bio group 

began paying a fiscal year-end dividend from fiscal 2012.

 Having paved the way to future growth in this manner, we decided this would 

be an opportune moment to rejuvenate our senior management team and foster 

the next generation of business managers. With president Toshio kakimoto at the 

helm and chairman Hisashi ohmiya providing support based on his extensive ex-

perience and personal connections, we will step up the pace of efforts to realize the 

Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014 and the Takara group 

Vision 2020. 

July 2012

Hisashi Ohmiya,  
Chairman
Takara Holdings Inc.

Toshio Kakimoto,  
President
Takara Holdings Inc.



analysis of changes in consolidated Financial results for Fiscal 2012

Fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2012

Takara Shuzo Group

Takara Bio Group

Other

189,769

198,690

＋8,713

＋840

Takara Healthcare –229

–403

Change in net sales: 
+¥8,921 million

2011年 3月期実績

2012年 3月期実績

宝酒造グループ

タカラバイオグループ

その他

8,335

9,264

＋199

＋449

宝ヘルスケア ＋137

＋142

Change in 
operating income: 
+¥929 million

operating income
(Millions of Yen)

net sales
(Millions of Yen)
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 looking Back at Fiscal 2012 Business results

The Takara group achieved record net sales thanks to a concerted effort.

in fiscal 2012, ended March 31, 2012, the extensive damage resulting from the great east Japan earthquake 
and uncertainty about power supplies stemming from a subsequent accident at a nuclear power station sig-
nificantly curtailed economic activity in Japan. in addition, consumer spending was sluggish due to global 
economic trends, such as yen appreciation and europe’s financial crisis, and concerns about future pensions 
and higher consumption tax in Japan.
 despite these challenging business conditions, the Takara group grew net sales to a new record of 
¥198,690 million, up 4.7% year on year, which reflected higher revenue from the Takara shuzo group and 
the Takara Bio group. operating income was up 11.2% year on year, to ¥9,264 million, due to higher earn-
ings from the Takara shuzo group and the Takara Bio group and Takara Healthcare’s improved operating 
loss. although recognizing an extraordinary loss due to the earthquake and the negative effect of a change in 
income tax rates, the group increased net income 5.5% year on year, to ¥3,995 million. Thus, the group 
was able to post significantly better results in tough business conditions.
 looking at business results by business group, the Takara shuzo group achieved a sharp rise in sales of 
the light-alcohol refreshers Takara Shochu High Ball and Takara Can Chu-Hi Jika-Shibori, while shochu and 
sake also sold briskly. In addition, our French subsidiary, FOODEX S.A.S., saw a sharp year-on-year increase 
in sales and, having become a consolidated subsidiary in the previous fiscal year, made a full-year contribu-
tion to business results. as a result, the group’s net sales rose 5.2% from the previous fiscal year. operating 
income was up 3.0% as higher net sales absorbed continuing high raw material prices.
 The Takara Bio group recorded a 4.5% rise in net sales year on year, attributable to an increase in reve-
nue from mainstay research reagents, despite yen appreciation, and favorable revenue from scientific instru-
ments, the gene medicine business for technical support services relating to cancer immunotherapy, and 
mushroom products. This rise in sales and an improved cost of sales ratio enabled a 41.0% jump in operating 
income to a new record high.
 although Takara Healthcare saw net sales decline as a result of lower revenue from the tea beverage pB 
(private brand) supply business, its operating loss improved markedly due to increased sales of high-margin 
fucoidan-related products.
 as well as demonstrating that the business groups’ initiatives are generating steady earnings, fiscal 2012 
business results testify to the concrete progress made toward the group’s goal of establishing a balanced busi-
ness structure that is readily adaptable to changing conditions.



alcoholic beverages and seasonings business
(Takara shuzo group)

Health foods business
(Takara Healthcare)

Biomedical business
(Takara Bio group)

Toward balanced business portfolio less susceptible to  
f luctuations in Japan and overseas

expand overseas business
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  evaluating the First Year of the Takara group Medium-Term Management  

plan FY2014

We took a solid first step toward achievement of the plan’s targets.

in april 2011, the Takara group embarked on a journey to realize the Takara group Vision 2020. as the first 
step toward realization of this vision, the group prepared the Takara group Medium-Term Management 
plan FY2014, which calls on it to achieve stable growth in Japan while expanding its business base in order 
to grow significantly overseas. accordingly, the group is taking concrete measures with its sights fixed on 
these goals. in the plan’s first fiscal year, fiscal 2012, the group made good progress toward the tangible goals 
for the final fiscal year, fiscal 2014.
 regarding the net sales target of at least ¥200.0 billion, the group has increased net sales to a level that 
should make this achievable one year ahead of schedule, in fiscal 2013. as for the operating income target of 
at least ¥10.0 billion, which requires a more than ¥1.6 billion addition to earnings over three years, in fiscal 
2012 the group grew operating income by more than ¥0.9 billion. aiming to reach these targets, the group 
intends to advance operations even more rapidly.
 To realize the vision’s goal of establishing a balanced business structure that is readily adaptable to chang-
ing conditions, growth in Japan and overseas and earnings growth in all businesses is indispensable. in the 
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Takara shuzo group, the mainstay domestic alcoholic beverages business is generating stable cash flows, 
while investments in the overseas alcoholic beverages business and the Japanese food ingredients wholesale 
business are bearing fruit. Meanwhile, the Takara Bio group is aggressively opening up markets in emerging 
countries—steadily growing sales in china and launching full-fledged sales of research reagents in india. 
Furthermore, the Takara Bio group is increasing sales in the gene medicine business, positioned as a future 
growth business, while moving forward with clinical development aimed at commercializing gene therapies. 
in Takara Healthcare, rising sales of health food products are improving the balance between income and 
expenditure, and the company aims to move into a position of profitability in fiscal 2013.

 adhering to a consistent Management strategy

We will continue developing businesses based on a clear long-term 
growth strategy.

Throughout a 170-year history stretching back to its founding as a sake brewery in Fushimi, kyoto, in 1842, 
the Takara group has unflaggingly innovated in the alcoholic beverages and seasonings business and other 
areas where it can bring its strengths to bear. We take a long-term view toward nurturing unique businesses 
and differentiated products that are created leveraging the Takara group’s technological capabilities. This 
approach is at the heart of the Takara group’s corporate culture as well as being the business management 
strategy that has driven the group’s progress.
 Trends of recent years have made creating hit products in the manner we used to challenging. This is 
because, as well as a shrinking of the Takara shuzo group’s mainstay alcoholic beverages market in Japan, 
consumer demand is fragmenting. Further, in the Takara Bio group’s mainstay research reagents market 
product lifecycles are shortening as technological trends evolve rapidly.
 To sustain growth in such conditions, the Takara group must unearth latent customer demand by ana-
lyzing social trends constantly and market a broad array of differentiated products. consequently, even if the 
sales of one product weaken, other products will compensate for this. This approach is reflected in our long-
term vision, which calls for strengthening our present business portfolio by establishing an earnings structure 
that is balanced in terms of businesses, products, and regions.
 The group’s technological capabilities enable such advancement of products and businesses and under-
pin its track record of bringing products to market as new solutions. These capabilities are our competitive 
advantage. Therefore, the group will continue honing them to further business development going forward.
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 pursuing strategies to grow overseas sales

The Takara shuzo group will grow overseas sales by popularizing  
Japanese cuisine worldwide.

Boosting the Takara shuzo group’s overseas sales is key if the Takara group is to grow overseas sales to  
account for at least 10% of net sales, the target set out in the Takara group Medium-Term Management plan 
FY2014. a large share of the Takara Bio group’s sales, more than 38%, already comes from outside Japan. 
Meanwhile, the Takara shuzo group generates about 5% of net sales overseas. By its final year, fiscal 2014, 
the plan calls for a 52.8% rise in this group’s overseas sales versus those of fiscal 2011. although this is an 
ambitious target, the group is striving to reach it to establish a balanced business structure that is readily 
adaptable to changing conditions. The Takara shuzo group must develop a rich lineup of products that have 
earned consumer endorsement in Japan and roll them out overseas. 
 The market for Japanese food is expanding overseas due to growing health awareness in developed coun-
tries and rising income levels in emerging countries. The Takara shuzo group has an overseas business that 
sells Japanese alcoholic beverages and seasonings and a business in europe that imports and wholesales Japa-
nese food ingredients. These businesses comprise one of the Takara group’s growth areas.
 Manufacturing and selling products such as sake and mirin in the united states, Takara sake usa inc. has 
been growing sales more than 8% per year on a u.s. dollar basis. recently, we finished ramping up production 
capacity at our u.s. sake brewery, which is likely to operate at full capacity for several years to come. in fiscal 
2012, due to higher depreciation accompanying the expansion of production facilities, operating income de-
clined. However, aiming to reach the plan’s final year targets—net sales of us$30 million and operating in-
come of us$1,465 thousand—the company will increase sales and production efficiency even further.
 In addition, developing our Japanese food ingredients wholesale business in Europe, FOODEX has con-
tinued to grow sales at an annualized rate of more than 20% on a euro basis. Moreover, it boasts a high  
operating income margin of around 12%. The company is extending its France-centered distribution network 
to encompass other european countries. as a result of these efforts, the company expects to reach the plan’s 
€43 million net sales and €5,132 thousand operating income targets for fiscal 2014 one year ahead of schedule. 
 The Takara shuzo group will grow overseas sales by continuing to expand the overseas alcoholic bever-
ages business and the Japanese food ingredients wholesale business and by popularizing Japanese cuisine 
worldwide through these businesses. as well as in european and north american markets, the Takara Bio 
group will grow sales in emerging countries such as china and india. Through such initiatives, the Takara 
group aims to increase the overseas sales of the entire group.

11.3 12.3 13.3 14.3
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8.4% 8.4%

10.0%
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results and plans for overseas sales
(Millions of Yen)

 Takara shuzo group     Takara Bio group
 Takara Holdings consolidated overseas sales     overseas sales ratio (Takara Holdings consolidated)
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 advancing Business results and returning profits to shareholders in Fiscal 2013

anticipating a steady rise in earnings levels, we decided to increase  
the level of our dividends.

Facing challenging business conditions resulting from continuing high raw material prices, the Takara shuzo 
group will heighten profitability in Japan by developing and nurturing differentiated products while  
expanding overseas businesses, thereby establishing a balanced business structure. For the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2013, the group anticipates higher revenue and earnings as sake and light-alcohol refreshers drive 
sales growth.
 in the Takara Bio group, the genetic engineering research business will continue developing markets in 
Japan and overseas actively. at the same time, the group intends to move forward with clinical development 
aimed at commercializing gene therapies. For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, taking into account 
increases in r&d expenses, the group expects to increase revenue and earnings by growing sales centered on 
research reagents. 
 although Takara Healthcare will likely see sales decrease slightly, the company anticipates achieving  
operating income by growing sales of mainstay fucoidan-related products while curbing sg&a expenses.
 as a result, the Takara group expects to realize higher revenue and earnings, posting year-on-year  
increases of 2.1% in net sales, to ¥202.8 billion, and 2.5% in operating income, to ¥9.5 billion.
 regarding returns to shareholders, our basic policy is to maintain stable dividends while taking into  
account operating performance when deciding on dividends and share buybacks each year, which contribute 
to improving capital efficiency. We plan to pay cash dividends of ¥9.00 per share for the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2013, the same level as for fiscal 2012, for which we increased cash dividends ¥0.50 per share. at 
the same time, aiming to maintain a shareholder return payout of at least 50%, we will actively provide  
returns to shareholders through share buybacks.

as we take on an array of fresh challenges, we would like to ask our shareholders and investors for their  
continued support.
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i am Toshio kakimoto, the new president.
 The Takara group has built a highly unique business portfolio that combines stable earnings from its 
mainstay alcoholic beverages and seasonings business and promising growth businesses, including the Bio-
medical business and the Health foods business. By strengthening our current business portfolio in Japan and 
overseas, we aim to establish a balanced business structure that is readily adaptable to changing conditions.
 This strategy is set out in our long-term management vision, the Takara group Vision 2020. The first step 
toward the realization of this vision is the realization of the goals set out in the Takara group Medium-Term 
Management plan FY2014. as vice president, i was involved in the preparation of the long-term management 
vision and the medium-term management plan. as president, i have rededicated myself to further advancing 
these management initiatives.
 after joining the predecessor of Takara Holdings inc., Takara shuzo co., ltd., in 1973, for many years i 
was involved in the technology and production field, where i concentrated on new product development and 
heightening quality. in 2010, i became vice president and became involved in the general management of the 
group while having overall control of Takara shuzo’s sales division. in light of these experiences, my motto 
is “product development clues are to be found in the frontline of our business.” 
 conditions in Japan’s alcoholic beverages market are challenging as society ages, alcohol consumption 
trends change, and deflation makes consumers more budget minded. Moreover, biotechnology is progressing 
rapidly and development competition is becoming fiercer. nevertheless, i am confident we can create op-
portunities for new growth by using our technological capabilities to develop high-value-added products and 
services that earn customer endorsement. To this end, my leadership will mobilize the group’s collective  
capabilities.
 Based on a newly reorganized senior management team, i intend to work toward realizing further growth 
and increasing corporate value unstintingly. as we take on new challenges, i would like to ask our sharehold-
ers and investors for their continued support.

president
Takara Holdings inc.

on the occasion of the 101st general shareholders’ 

Meeting on June 28, i became the president of  

Takara Holdings inc.

 in my new role, i intend to advance toward the 

realization of the Takara group Vision 2020 tirelessly.
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corporate social responsibility

The Takara group will meet the expectations of all of its stakeholders by providing safe, reliable products and services while 

contributing to the progress of medicine in order to enrich people’s lives.

csr initiatives—Fundamentals
The overriding goal of the Takara group as a corporate citizen is 
to contribute to society through its main business in accordance 
with its corporate philosophy. given the likelihood of multifac-
eted change in Japan and overseas, we are convinced that strength-
ening the integration of corporate social responsibility (csr) 
initiatives and growth strategies is critical in order to increase the 
group’s overall corporate value.
 Mindful of this, we have set out further strengthening of csr 
initiatives as a key element underpinning the business targets of 
the Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014. To 
this end, the Takara group will build a compliance system that 
integrates group companies in Japan and overseas; step up envi-
ronmental activities, including promoting the preservation of 
biodiversity and reducing co2 emission volumes; and develop 
the corporate culture and personnel essential for growth of the 
group as a whole.

csr initiatives—priorities
at the Takara group, we believe that continuing to provide safe, 
reliable products and services is the most important task of its csr 
initiatives. The group will realize sustainable growth by enriching 
people’s lives through such products and services while benefiting 
society through environmental preservation activities, etc.

csr initiatives—the Takara group
our main csr initiatives center on the Takara shuzo group, 
which accounts for roughly 90% of the group’s overall revenues. 
Making alcoholic beverages and seasonings, the Takara shuzo 
group’s main business, is based on water and cereals that nature 
provides and the natural action of microorganisms. Because pro-
ducing alcoholic beverages and seasonings relies on the power of 
nature in this way, we have set out harmony with nature as our 
first priority and consequently pursue environment-friendly  
activities. other important csr tasks include appropriate dis-
posing of empty containers—an unavoidable problem for com-
panies selling alcoholic beverages—and conducting campaigns 
that promote awareness of appropriate alcohol consumption  
levels and manners relating to alcohol consumption.
 as for the Takara Bio group, although generating about 10% 
of the Takara group’s total revenues, it accounts for at least 30% 
of the Takara group’s employees and approximately 90% of 
r&d expenses. The Takara Bio group uses innovative biotech-
nology to develop and commercialize such leading-edge medical 
technologies as gene and cell therapies for cancer, HiV, and other 
unmet medical needs. The Takara Bio group conducts r&d  
appropriately from the viewpoint of bioethics.

r&d expenses by Business segment

 Takara Bio Group 87.8%
 Takara Shuzo Group and other 12.2%

 

employees by Business segment

 Takara shuzo group 61.6%

 Takara Bio group 33.3%

 Takara Healthcare 0.4%

 other 4.7%

For more information about the Takara shuzo group’s csr initiatives, please see the “green-ink” corporate 
reports (only available in Japanese).

http://www.takarashuzo.co.jp/environment/greenpdf/
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csr initiatives—Main Focuses
Quality and safety: Quality testing (Takara shuzo) 
in order to meet the need for safe, reliable food, Takara shuzo 
systematically enforces uncompromising quality control at all stag-
es of its operations, from product planning through to manufac-
turing and shipment. Further, we 
provide customers with accurate in-
formation through labeling detailing 
our analysis of products’ ingredients 
and nutritional constituents.

Quality and safety: prevention of accidental alcohol ingestion
(Takara shuzo)
aiming to prevent the 
accidental consumption 
of alcohol by the visually 
impaired, Takara shuzo 
became the first compa-
ny in Japan to include the Japanese word for “alcoholic beverage” 
in braille on the tops of canned chu-hi products in 1995. in 2002, 
we were also the first in Japan to do the same for the caps of alco-
holic beverages sold in cardboard cartons.

Quality and safety: appropriate consumption of alcohol 
(Takara shuzo)
Takara shuzo promotes a range of initiatives reminding people to 
drink in moderation and follow the rules on alcohol consumption, 
which is an important responsibility of companies selling alcoholic 
beverages. as well as publishing the Maintaining a Positive Relation-
ship with Alcohol booklet, which includes basic information on alco-
holic beverages and how to drink them 
correctly, Takara shuzo has included 
warnings against underage drinking 
and drink-driving on the labels of its 
alcoholic beverages since 1995.

Bioethics and safety: Monitoring ethics and safety (Takara Bio)
Takara Bio conducts r&d that uses tissues, cells, clinical speci-
mens, genomes, and genes derived from humans. using these, 
Takara Bio conducts businesses related to gene investigation and 
contract operations as well as businesses that provide human tis-
sue or cell products. in addition to ensuring compliance with 
relevant laws and statutory regulations as a matter of course, Ta-
kara Bio views respecting human rights and ensuring that the 
above-mentioned operational activities contribute to society ap-
propriately as important and has established bioethics and safety 
rules as well as an in-house bioethics committee that scrutinizes 
operations rigorously.

environmental preservation: promotion of 4rs (Takara shuzo)
dealing with the empty containers left over after alcoholic bever-
ages have been consumed is a major problem for the alcoholic bev-
erage industry. in relation to packaging, Takara shuzo promotes the 
4rs (refuse, reduce, reuse, and recycle principles) in support of  
environment-friendly practices. in 
accordance with these principles, the 
company minimizes the need for 
new containers through selling prod-
ucts by the weight of their content 
and using bottles that can be refilled.

social contribution: environmental education campaigns
(Takara Holdings, Takara shuzo)
every year since its establishment as a public trust fund in 1985, 
the Takara Harmonist Fund has supported the efforts of groups 
and individuals dedicated to the environmental activities or con-
ducting environmental research. over this period, the fund has 
assisted 291 projects and donated approximately ¥140 million. 
Further, since 2004 the Takara shuzo group has provided environ-
mental education through the Takara shuzo Farm school, which 
teaches children—the leaders of the next generation—about the 
preciousness of nature and the importance of biodiversity.

Takara shuzo Farm school wins special prize at  
9th corporate philanthropy awards
our Takara shuzo Farm school environmental event claimed 
a special prize at the 9th corporate philanthropy awards, orga-
nized by the Japan philanthropic association, a public interest 
incorporated association. in 2003, the association established 
the corporate philanthropy awards to “recognize social contri-
bution activities that are based on companies’ principal opera-
tions.” our prize reflected high acclaim for “focusing on rice as 
the most important raw material for a company engaged in the 
production of rice-based products such as sake and discovering 
a way to contribute to society based on rice paddies.”
 Takara shuzo Farm school is an environmental education 
program in which participants learn about nature’s bounty and 
ecology by experiencing farm work, such as rice planting, 
weeding, and rice harvesting; observing nature in and around 
rice paddies; and learning about the processes by which har-
vested rice becomes mochi rice cakes or hon 
mirin alcohol-based seasonings. Between 
2004 and 2010, Takara shuzo conducted 
these programs in chiba prefecture, and it 
has been conducting them in kyoto prefec-
ture since 2011.
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corporate governance

Basic policy on corporate  
governance
The Takara group recognizes the strengthening of corporate gov-
ernance as a key management issue for achieving sustained growth 
in corporate value. in accordance with the following basic policy, 
the group is striving to strengthen corporate governance.

 The group is focusing on increasing corporate value through 
four principal means:
1.  accelerating growth by delegating authority and providing 

autonomy to each group company, thereby enabling them to 
increase their own corporate value;

2.  Maintaining a business climate for the disclosure of reports on 
individual group companies and the free exchange of ideas 
about management policies and business strategies through 
regularly scheduled meetings and other activities, thereby fur-
ther increasing corporate value of the group as a whole;

3.  complying with rules and ordinances, maintaining ethical 
principles, and promoting a sound corporate governance sys-
tem for the group in order to fulfill its overall corporate  
social responsibilities; and

4.  disclosing accurate information consistently and in an open 
and timely manner as well as maintaining an internal net-
work for disclosure to increase business transparency.

corporate governance structure
The company has adopted the corporate auditor system of cor-
porate governance, and, as of June 28, 2012, the Board of corpo-
rate auditors comprised five corporate auditors, including three 
external auditors. The company’s Board of directors comprised 
nine directors, including one external director.
 under this structure, in addition to the audits conducted by 
the corporate auditors, the external director liaises with the Board 
of corporate auditors and the director responsible for internal 
control to contribute to the audit and supervision of business exe-
cution, thereby strengthening supervisory functions regarding the 
company’s management. The external director maintains a high 
degree of independence and possesses a broad knowledge based on 
the perspective of all stakeholders, including shareholders.
 Further, as a holding company, Takara Holdings has formu-
lated the “rules and regulations for overseeing group compa-
nies” with the goal of facilitating independence and autonomy 
among group companies in order to maximize the corporate 
value of the overall group. The company has also established the 
group strategy committee, Mother Business consultation and 
coordination committee, Takara Bio coordination committee, 
Takara Healthcare strategic committee, and Functional subsid-
iary consultation and coordination committee, which are  
required to deliberate and report in advance on major matters.

audit environment
The company’s corporate auditors audit the execution of duties 
by the directors through participation at the Board of directors’ 
meeting and other important meetings; examination of opera-
tions, assets, and key documents; and, where deemed necessary, 
interviews with directors and personnel responsible for specific 
areas of the company’s operations. With regard to internal audits, 
the company has established the audit division, which acts inde-
pendently from the departments that receive audits. The audit 
division conducts audits in accordance with the company’s inter-
nal audit regulations and works to maintain proper execution of 
duties through the implementation of any measures deemed nec-
essary. The audit division, the Board of corporate auditors, and 
the accounting auditors regularly exchange opinions concerning 
audit plans and policies and the status of audit implementation, 
and strive to maintain mutual cooperation through the exchange 
of opinions and information and by holding discussions.

activities with important repercus-
sions for corporate governance
policies concerning our publicly traded subsidiary Takara Bio inc.
Takara Holdings inc. is the parent company of Takara Bio inc., 
holding 70.8% of the voting rights of Takara Bio (Tokyo stock 
exchange Mothers; securities code number: 4974) as of March 
31, 2012. The relationship between the company and Takara Bio 
is outlined below.

1) listed subsidiary Takara Bio
on april 1, 2002, Takara Bio was spun off from the parent com-
pany as a wholly owned subsidiary. subsequently, the parent 
company’s share of voting rights was reduced to its current level 
through third-party capital increases, public subscriptions, the  
issue of bonds with warrants, and other corporate actions.
 as of March 31, 2012, Takara Holdings is a pure holding 
company comprising 37 subsidiaries and five affiliates. Takara Bio 
is positioned as the subsidiary specializing in biotechnology and 
promoting biotechnology-related businesses for the group.

2) Holding company management of group companies
Takara Bio abides by the “rules and regulations for overseeing 
group companies” and receives reports on decisions and other 
actions of the Board of directors, but is not required to seek the 
approval of the Board before enacting policies and operates inde-
pendently of the holding company.
 Further, although Takara Bio’s representative directors, and 
other Board members and executive officers, are requested to at-
tend meetings of the group strategy committee, Takara Bio  
coordination committee, and other committees of the compa-
ny, the objective of this attendance is to discuss overall group 



23Takara Holdings inc.   annual reporT 2012

policies and facilitate reporting among group companies, and 
does not inhibit the autonomy or independence of Takara Bio.

policies on response to large-scale purchases of the company’s 
shares (takeover defense guidelines)
at the Board of directors’ meeting held on May 15, 2006, the 
company enacted “policies on response to large-scale purchas-
es of the company’s shares (takeover defense guidelines)” with 
the aim of maintaining and increasing corporate value and pro-
moting the joint benefit of shareholders.
 However, believing that policies better reflecting the opinion 
of shareholders are needed for optimizing the joint benefit of 

shareholders, the Board of directors revised its Takeover defense 
guidelines. The Board determined at its meeting held on May 
15, 2007, that in the future it would introduce measures for pre-
venting takeovers at its general shareholders’ meeting after con-
ferring with shareholders, and that decisions regarding actions in 
this regard would be made at general shareholders’ meetings as a 
rule. For details, see our website: http://www.takara.co.jp/eng-
lish/ and official company accounts (Japanese language only).
 at the 96th general shareholders’ Meeting, held on June 28, 
2007, Takeover defense guidelines were introduced and approved. at 
the 99th general shareholders’ Meeting, held on June 29, 2010, the 
partial amendment and continuation of these measures was approved.

A large-scale purchaser appears

Statement of intent submitted by large-scale purchaser

List of necessary information required given to the large-scale purchaser

Information submitted by large-scale purchaser

Subsequent request of information

Judgment regarding whether submitted information is su�cient

Announcement of the start of the evaluation period 
by the Board of Directors

Defense measures not implemented
Large-scale purchase begins

Defense measures implemented
(Allocation of free stock acquisition rights)

Evaluation by the Board of Directors
Evaluation of the necessity and reasonableness of the implementation of defense measures 

(Evaluation period: 30 business days from the start of the evaluation period)

A General Shareholders’ Meeting to Con�rm Shareholders’ Intentions shall be held
Decide whether or not to implement defense measures (through allocation of free stock acquisition rights) 

(In principle, shall be held within 60 business days of the end of the evaluation period)

External experts

If the large-scale purchase rules are complied with

Within �ve business days

In the event that information is 
judged to be insu�cient

In the event that information 
is judged to be su�cient

In the event that it is judged not necessary 
or reasonable to implement defense measures

In the event that it is judged necessary and 
reasonable to implement defense measures

Rejection Acceptance

Advice on whether or not the 
information is su�cient to 
allow shareholders to make 
judgments and the Board of 
Directors to form opinions

Even in the event that su�cient information has not yet been received, 
the evaluation period is to start immediately after 30 business days 
have passed since the initial information submission date. Advice on the necessity and 

reasonableness of the 
implementation of defense 
measures

If the large-scale purchase begins w
ithout com

plying w
ith large-scale purchase rules

N
o m

ore than 30 business days betw
een the initial inform

ation subm
ission date and the start date of the evaluation period

large-scale purchase rules
1.  The large-scale purchaser must provide the Board of directors with sufficient information regarding the large-scale purchase in advance.
2. (a)  all large-scale purchasers shall wait until the end of the evaluation of the purchase proposal by a Board of directors’ meeting, which 

shall be held no later than 30 business days from the start of the evaluation period, before starting their large-scale purchase.
    (b)  in the event that a general shareholders’ Meeting to confirm shareholders’ intentions is held, the large-scale purchaser shall not 

begin its large-scale purchase until the end of the general shareholders’ Meeting to confirm shareholders’ intentions. 
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General Shareholders’ Meeting

Executive Divisions and Group Companies

Board of Directors
(9 members)

(1 external director) Board of Corporate Auditors
(5 members)

(3 external auditors)

Representative Directors
(3 members) Audit Division

Compliance Committee and
Internal Control Committee

General A�airs Department
(Executive O�ce)

Group Strategy Committee

Management Committee System (Consultation on important matters)

Takara 
Healthcare
Strategic

Committee

Functional
Subsidiary

Consultation
and

Coordination
Committee

Mother
Business

Consultation
and

Coordination
Committee*1

Takara Bio
Coordination
Committee*2

Selection and dismissal

Selection and 
oversight

Convocation

Audit
AuditAudit

Selection and dismissal

Report

Report

Report

Accounting
audit

Report

Report

ReportDirection

ReportDirection
ReportDirection

Internal audit

Approval of selection 
and reappointment, 
dismissal, and monitoring

Audit

Report

Direction

Report

Selection

Selection and dismissal

*1 Consultation and coordination committee for the “mother” business segment (Takara Shuzo Group)
*2 �e role of the Takara Bio Coordination Committee is to receive reports on the business activities of Takara Bio Inc. �e committee does not inhibit Takara Bio’s autonomy, and its prior 
 approval is not required for the decisions of Takara Bio’s Board of Directors.

Accounting Auditors

corporate governance system (as of June 28, 2012)

Takara Bio coordination committee
comprising the representative directors, executives respon-
sible for operational management, executives responsible 
for accounting, executives responsible for finance and  
investor relations, and corporate auditors of Takara Holdings 
and directors, corporate auditors, and executive officers of 
Takara Bio, this committee reports the business results and 
initiatives of Takara Bio.

Takara Healthcare strategic committee
comprising the representative directors, executives respon-
sible for operational management, executives responsible 
for accounting, and executives responsible for finance and 
investor relations of Takara Holdings; the representative 
directors and executives responsible for the agribio business 
of Takara Bio; and the president of Takara Healthcare, this 
committee decides important matters that affect Takara 
Healthcare’s operational management, operations, financial 
position, and business results; conducts prior deliberation 
of specific matters, including responses to important mat-
ters arising; and reports business results and initiatives.

Functional subsidiary consultation 
and coordination committee
comprising executives with overall  
control of operational management,  
executives responsible for operational 
management, executives responsible for 
accounting, and executives responsible 
for finance and investor relations of  
Takara Holdings and the presidents of 
functional subsidiaries (Taihei printing 
co., ltd., kawahigashi shoji co., ltd., 
and Takara network system co., ltd.), 
this committee decides important mat-
ters that affect functional subsidiaries’ 
operational management, operations,  
financial position, and business results; 
conducts prior deliberation of specific 
matters, including responses to impor-
tant matters arising; and reports business 
results and initiatives.

Mother Business consultation and coordination 
committee
comprising the directors and corporate auditors of Takara 
Holdings and the directors, corporate auditors, and execu-
tive officers of Takara shuzo, this committee decides  
important matters that affect the Takara shuzo group’s  
operational management, operations, financial position, 
and business results; conducts prior deliberation of specific 
matters, including responses to important matters arising; 
and reports business results and initiatives.

group strategy committee
comprising the directors and corporate auditors of Takara 
Holdings inc. and the representative directors of Takara 
shuzo co., ltd., Takara Bio inc., and Takara Healthcare 
inc., this committee discusses important matters relating to 
the overall operational management of the Takara group, 
including group management strategy, medium-to-long-
term plans, fiscal year budgets, fiscal year initiative plans, 
fiscal year investment and loan plans, dividend policy, and 
biannual business result reviews.

overview of Management committee system
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executives involvement in committees
committee (meeting frequency)

directors/auditors
group strategy 

committee 
(6 times a year)

Mother Business 
consultation and 

coordination 
committee  

(every month)

Takara Bio 
coordination 
committee  

(every month)

Takara Healthcare 
strategic 

committee 
(4 times a year)

Functional subsidiary 
consultation and 

coordination 
committee

(4 times a year)

compliance 
committee 

(twice a year) 

internal control 
committee 

(twice a year)

chairman Hisashi ohmiya

Vice chairman Tadashi ohmiya   chairman

president Toshio kakimoto chairman chairman chairman chairman chairman chairman

director Masaharu Yano    
director shuichiro Matsuzaki   
director Takao okane

director daisuke nakao

director koichi nakao

director (external director) Takehiko ueta   
standing auditor Tomio kamada  
standing auditor (external auditor) kunihiro Handa  
corporate auditor Hideo Tomomura

corporate auditor (external auditor) kozo kagawa

corporate auditor (external auditor) kumiko kitai  

Message to investors from the external director

The role of an external director
First, let me briefly introduce myself. i was the president of 
dai-ichi kogyo seiyaku co., ltd., which manufactures and 
sells surfactants and various other industrial agents, for six 
years. subsequently, in 2007, i became an external director of 
Takara Holdings inc. drawing on my experience as the chief 
executive of a listed company, i provide opinions at meetings 
of the Board of directors of Takara Holdings as required. in 
addition, i help strengthen business management oversight 
by collaborating with the Board of corporate auditors to 
conduct investigative interviews of executive officers. 

corporate governance
With regard to corporate governance, Takara Holdings has 
two distinctive features. The first is an uncompromising corpo-
rate culture, which the previous president, Hisashi ohmiya, 
currently the chairman, built over 19 years. This uncompro-
mising corporate culture is evident in an approach to business 
management that always bases decisions on the interests of 
stakeholders while being determined to reach targets and 
avoid using outside factors as an excuse.
 The second distinctive feature is the company’s governance 
system. Takara Holdings has 37 consolidated subsidiaries cen-
tered on three operating companies in different fields—Takara 
shuzo co., ltd., Takara Bio inc., and Takara Healthcare inc. in 
order to ensure coherent decision making as a corporate group, 
as well as the Board of directors, it has a Management commit-
tee system, which discusses important matters and monitors the 
financial positions of subsidiaries carefully. This system effec-
tively optimizes the group’s business management and prevents 

irregularities on the part of operating companies. as the external 
director, i am actively involved in the operation of this system.
 With the appointment of Toshio kakimoto as the new 
president, as the external director i intend to provide advice 
based on objective information to ensure Takara Holdings 
resolutely maintains these distinctive features, the two flag-
ships of its corporate governance.

The Takara group’s strengths
While founded on steadiness, the Takara group has an  
extremely strong appetite for taking on challenges. This 
steadiness and ambitiousness have led the Takara group to 
enter the Biomedical business, which has evolved from its fer-
mentation technologies, and embark upon overseas forays by 
acquiring businesses closely connected to its existing busi-
nesses. i think this corporate culture will be a major asset in 
business development going forward. as the external director, 
i want my recommendations to ensure these strengths that 
have supported the Takara group remain undiminished and 
drive further development.

Takehiko ueta  external director, Takara Holdings inc.
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Board of directors and auditors
as of June 28, 2012

Hisashi ohmiya (69)

chairman, Takara Holdings inc. 
chairman, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
chairman, Takara Bio inc.

 apr.  1968  Joins company
 apr.  1974  general Manager of new Business development division
 May  1974  director
 Jun.  1982  Managing director
 Jun.  1988  senior Managing director
 Jul.  1989  chief officer of Bio Business division
 apr.  1990   chief officer of east-district alcoholic Beverages  

Business division
 Jun.  1991  Vice president
 apr.  1993  chief officer of alcoholic Beverages Business division
 Jun.  1993  president
 apr.  2002  president, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
    chairman, Takara Bio inc. (incumbent)
 Jun.  2012  chairman, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
   chairman, Takara shuzo co., ltd. (incumbent)

Tadashi ohmiya (62)

Vice chairman, Takara Holdings inc.  
(operational Management,  
Finance & investor relations,  
accounting, environment &  
public relations)
Vice president, Takara shuzo co., ltd.

 Feb.  2000   secretary of international division,  
The Fuji Bank, limited

 May  2000  retires from The Fuji Bank, limited
 Jun.  2000  Joins company
 apr.  2001  general Manager of corporate planning office
 apr.  2002  general Manager of overall corporate planning division
 Jun.  2002  director
 Jun.  2004  Vice president
 Jun.  2006  Vice president, Takara shuzo co., ltd. (incumbent)
 Jun.  2012  Vice chairman, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)

Toshio kakimoto (61)

president, Takara Holdings inc.
president, Takara shuzo co., ltd.

 apr.  1973  Joins company
 apr.  2001   general Manager of Technology and supply  

planning office
 Jun.  2004  Managing director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 Jun.  2010  Vice president, Takara Holdings inc.
   Vice president, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 Jun.  2012  president, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
   president, Takara shuzo co., ltd. (incumbent)

koichi nakao (50)

president, Takara Bio inc.
director, Takara Holdings inc.

 apr.  1985  Joins company
 apr.  2002  director, Takara Bio inc. (upon divestiture)
 Jun.  2007  Vice president, Takara Bio inc.
 May  2009  president, Takara Bio inc. (incumbent)
    president, Takara Bio usa Holdings inc. (incumbent)
      chairman, Takara Biotechnology (dalian) co., ltd. (incumbent)
     chairman, Takara Biomedical Technology (Beijing) co.,  

ltd. (incumbent)
 Jun.  2009  director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
 Mar.  2010  chairman, Takara korea Biomedical inc. (incumbent)
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directors

Masaharu Yano (63) 

director, Takara Holdings inc. (environment & public relations)
Managing director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 apr.  2002  director, Human resources division, Mizuho Bank, ltd.
 Jun.  2002  retires from Mizuho Bank, ltd.
    standing auditor, Takara Holdings inc.
 Jun.  2004  director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
 Jun.  2005  general Manger of Finance division

shuichiro Matsuzaki (56)

director, Takara Holdings inc.  
(operational Management, Finance & investor relations, accounting)
senior Managing director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 apr.  1980  Joins company
 apr.  2003  general Manager of Finance group
 apr.  2004  general Manager of Finance division
 Jun.  2005  director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
    general Manager of accounting division
   general Manager of investor relations office
 Jun.  2007  general Manager of Finance division

Takao okane (60)

director, Takara Holdings inc. (general affairs, personnel)
director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 apr.  1977  Joins company
 apr.  2001  general Manager of Tokyo office
 Jun.  2003  Managing director, Japan synthetic alcohol co., ltd.
 Jun.  2005   general Manager of general affairs & personnel division, 

Takara Holdings inc.
 Jun.  2007  director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)

daisuke nakao (58) 

director, Takara Holdings inc.
senior Managing director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 apr.  1976  Joins company
 Jun.  2001  director
 Mar.  2002  retires as director
 apr.  2002   senior executive officer, Takara shuzo co., ltd.  

(upon divestiture)
 Jun.  2006  Managing director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 Jun.  2009  director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
     senior Managing director,  

Takara shuzo co., ltd. (incumbent)

Takehiko ueta (72)

external director, Takara Holdings inc.
external director, Takara shuzo co., ltd.
 Jun.  1998  president, dai-ichi kogyo seiyaku co., ltd.
 Jun.  2004  Board advisor, dai-ichi kogyo seiyaku co., ltd.
 Jun.  2007  external director, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)

auditors

Tomio kamada (62)

standing auditor, Takara Holdings inc.
 apr.  1972  Joins company
 apr.  2001  general Manager of overseas division
 nov.  2003   director and general Manager of administrative division, 

nissin shurui co., ltd.
 Jun.  2007  standing auditor, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)

kunihiro Handa (58)

standing auditor (external auditor), Takara Holdings inc.
 Jun.  2005  general Manger of planning control division,  
   The norinchukin Bank
 Jun.  2007  retires from The norinchukin Bank
    director, kyodo leasing co., ltd.
 oct.  2008  executive officer, Ja Mitsui leasing, ltd. 
 Jun.  2009   standing auditor (external auditor),  

Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)

Hideo Tomomura (64)

corporate auditor, Takara Holdings inc.
 apr.  1972  Joins company
 Jun.  2000  general Manager of personnel division
 apr.  2003  general Manager of general affairs & personnel group
 apr.  2004  general Manager of general affairs & personnel division
 Jun.  2005  Managing director, Japan synthetic alcohol co., ltd.
 Jun.  2008  corporate auditor, Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
   standing auditor, Takara shuzo co., ltd. (incumbent)

kozo kagawa (68)

corporate auditor (external auditor), Takara Holdings inc.
 apr.  2007  professor emeritus, kobe university (incumbent)
     lecturer, english and international affairs Faculty,  

osaka Jogakuin college
 apr.  2008  Vice president, osaka Jogakuin college
 Jun.  2008   corporate auditor (external auditor),  

Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
 apr.  2012   department chair, graduate school of international  

collaboration and coexistence in the 21st century,  
osaka Jogakuin college (incumbent)

kumiko kitai (59) 

corporate auditor (external auditor), Takara Holdings inc.
 aug.  2005   director-general, The equal employment,  

children and Families Bureau, Ministry of Health,  
labour and Welfare

 aug.  2007   senior Managing director,  
Japan industrial safety & Health association

 Jun.  2011   corporate auditor (external auditor),  
Takara Holdings inc. (incumbent)
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Business outline

Takara shuzo group

shochu
proprietary technologies garnered over many years have consistently 
enabled Takara shuzo to realize shochu products that satisfy chang-
ing consumer preferences and develop the shochu market continu-
ally. For ko-type shochu, Takara shuzo has built the largest share of 
the market based on Japan’s most popular shochu brand, Takara Sho-
chu, which has now been on the market for a century; a premium 
shochu blended with 3% barrel-aged shochu, Gokujo Takara Shochu; 
and another long-seller, Takara Shochu Jun. Meanwhile in the 
honkaku shochu market, Takara shuzo has launched and nurtured a 
range of unique shochu products. These include Ikkomon, a 100% 
sweet-potato-based shochu; Shirashinken honkaku barley shochu, 
which accentuates the rich fla-
vor of barley; and Yokaichi, 
catering to those who wish to 
enjoy shochu casually with 
their evening meal.

sake
as the sake for celebrations, Sho-Chiku-Bai has become the foremost 
brand in the special occasion and gift sake market. also, Takara shu-
zo produces such quality sake as the new-concept sparkling sake Sho-
Chiku-Bai Shirakabe-gura Mio and Sho-Chiku-Bai Shirakabe-gura 
Kimoto Junmai at a specially built facility. completed in 2001, the 
Shirakabe-gura Brewery, in kobe, Hyogo prefecture, combines lead-
ing-edge facilities that recreate traditional, artisan-inspired brewing 
techniques and sake brewing done by hand. For the market compris-
ing customers who wish to enjoy sake informally with their evening 
meal, we have launched Sho-Chiku-Bai Ten in a new pouch-pack 
container to satisfy diverse cus-
tomer needs. Meanwhile, in 
the restaurant and bar market, 
Sho-Chiku-Bai Gokai enjoys 
strong customer endorsement.

light-alcohol refreshers
The original flavors of our light-alcohol refreshers have earned the sup-
port of a large customer group. Mainstay products include Takara Can 
Chu-Hi, launched in 1984 as Japan’s first canned chu-hi product, and 

The history of the Takara group’s core alcoholic beverages and seasonings business goes 
back to 1842. For 170 years, it has been our mission to provide reliable products that 
are in tune with the changing times and diversifying customer tastes and values and are 
backed by our ingenuity and proven technologies. Takara shuzo group’s products span 
a broad range of categories, including shochu, sake, light-alcohol refreshers, wine, whis-
ky, chinese alcoholic beverages, seasonings, and raw alcohol. it operates not only in 
Japan but also globally through subsidiaries in the united states, china, and europe.

sales by product category

 shochu 41.9%

 sake 11.9%

 light-alcohol refreshers 15.2%

 seasonings 12.6%
 other 18.4%

Takara Shochu High Ball, which realizes the distinctively dry chu-hi 
flavor that has long been a favorite in the neighborhood bars of 
downtown Tokyo. Furthermore, Takara shuzo also develops and nur-
tures a wide spectrum of products to meet diverse consumer tastes. 
For example, we market a differentiated canned chu-hi product fea-
turing strictly selected delicious fruit juices that are freshly squeezed 
at orchards, Takara Can Chu-Hi Jika-Shibori, and Takara Can Chu-
Hi Jika-Shibori Kuchidoke, with a 
distinctively smooth taste and a 
mild sweetness.

seasonings
aiming to provide delicious food through products derived from tra-
ditional sake brewing techniques, Takara shuzo offers a wide range of 
alcohol-based seasonings that render dishes more delicious and  
enrich meal times. These seasonings include Takara Hon Mirin, 
which as a leading brand has continually evolved in tandem with 
Japanese cuisine, and Ryori-no-Tame-no Seishu, a cooking sake with-
out added salt. in the food-processing market, for ready-prepared 
meals and processed food products Takara shuzo offers a lineup of 
seasoning products under the Kyo Takara brand and soup stocks. 
also, the company provides customers with solutions to diverse  
issues through food analysis, 
cooking research, and recipe  
development.

overseas Business
generating interest as a delicious and healthy cuisine, Japanese food is glo-
balizing. in step with this trend, the popularity of sake and mirin is increas-
ing. Sho-Chiku-Bai sake, Takara Mirin, and other Takara products are now 
available in more than 40 countries across europe, north america, and 
asia. since 2010, Takara shuzo has 
been accelerating the further spread of 
Japanese food culture worldwide by 
developing a Japanese food ingredients 
wholesale business in europe and offer-
ing packages combining Japanese alco-
holic beverages and food ingredients.
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Takara Bio group

Takara Healthcare

genetic engineering research
This business supports biotechnology research worldwide, from basic 
research conducted at universities to industrial companies working in 
such fields as drug-discovery research. The Takara Bio group closely 
reflects market needs by developing and supplying advanced poly-
merase chain reaction (pcr) research reagents used in gene-ampli-
fication and real-time pcr systems. in addition to the field of 
genetic engineering, Takara Bio intends to focus on r&d in the field 
of advanced cell biology—a market that promises growth. Takara Bio 
will heighten its presence in the global market by manufacturing a 
lineup of highly cost-competitive products in china and selling them 
worldwide while advancing tie-ups with companies that have tech-
nology conducive to mutually complementary relationships. in the 
contract research services business, Takara Bio offers high-value-add-
ed contract research services. These include high-speed sequence 
analysis and contract production services for ips cells. also, the  
Takara Bio group provides next-gen-
eration data mining services, which 
extract useful information from the 
extremely large amounts of data pro-
duced by analysis.

agribio
in this business, Takara Bio uses the group’s biotechnology to ana-
lyze the properties of traditional Japanese foodstuffs. it then uses 
these ingredients to develop and manufacture health food products. 
also, Takara Bio takes advantage of its technologies for breeding 
and large-scale cultivation of mushrooms in order to produce and 
sell mushrooms. in the Health foods business, Takara Bio researches 
the properties of gagome kombu (kelp) “fucoidan,” agar-derived 
“agaro-oligosaccharide,” ashitaba (angelica herb) “chalcone,” mush-
room “terpene,” yam (Dioscorea esculenta) “Yamsgenin™,” and herb 

The mission of the Takara group’s Biomedical business is to contribute to the health 
of humankind by developing revolutionary biomedical technologies such as cell medi-
cine and gene therapy. The Takara Bio group—whose role is to make this a reality—is 
generating stable earnings from the genetic engineering research business, which forms 
the core of both its technology and earnings base. it is also fostering the agribio busi-
ness as a second earnings source and working to commercialize gene and cell therapies 
by investing resources in the gene medicine business.

Takara Healthcare uses the Takara group’s unique ingredients and technologies to provide customers with safe and reliable health 
foods through direct marketing channels, thereby helping people to live healthy and active lives. The Takara group is growing the 
Health foods business more rapidly by promoting synergies. in these joint efforts, Takara Healthcare draws on marketing expertise 
from the Takara shuzo group to sell health foods featuring functional ingredients that the Takara Bio group’s research has identified.

sales by Business category

 genetic engineering research 83.3％
 agribio 12.4％
 gene Medicine 4.3％

(Peucedanum japonicum) “isosamidin.” 
Based on these ingredients, Takara Bio  
develops and produces health foods, 
which it delivers to consumers through 
Takara Healthcare inc. in addition, Takara 
Bio also supplies food manufacturers with 
functional food ingredients for food products and beverages through 
Takara Healthcare. Further, the mushroom business licenses bacterial 
strains and large-scale production technology for Bunashimeji mush-
rooms to entities including Ja Zen-noH (national Federation of 
agricultural cooperative associations) nagano. and, Takara Bio 
produces and sells Hatakeshimeji and Honshimeji mushrooms.

gene Medicine
applying technologies developed in the genetic engineering re-
search business, Takara Bio develops and commercializes core tech-
nologies essential to gene medicine. one of these is the retronectin® 
Method, which enables the efficient transduction of genes into 
blood cells and is becoming the standard gene transduction method 
in ex vivo gene therapy. another core technology is the retronec-
tin® expansion-culture system, which gene and cell therapies use. 
Takara Bio’s system enables the culturing of large volumes of cell 
populations containing a high proportion of naive T-cells with sig-
nificant in vivo persistence and superior antigen recognition proper-
ties. By licensing these technologies worldwide, Takara Bio aims to 
spread their use and increase earnings. in addition, the 
company conducts in-house clinical development of 
gene and cell therapies for cancer and HiV. also, for 
cancer immunotherapy Takara Bio provides medical  
institutions with technical support services for cell  
processing as well as marketing cell culture media and  
gas-permeable bags.



30 Takara Holdings inc.   annual reporT 2012

consolidated Financial Highlights
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

u.s. dollars (note 2)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  2012

For the Years ended March 31:
net sales ¥198,690 ¥189,769 ¥190,525 ¥192,790 ¥191,878 $2,423,048 
 Takara shuzo group 175,503 166,790 166,969 169,301 166,788 2,140,280 
 Takara Bio group 19,578 18,737 19,325 18,913 20,278 238,756 
 Takara Healthcare 2,338 2,567 2,486 2,853 3,078 28,512 
 other (including eliminations) 1,269 1,673 1,743 1,722 1,733 15,475 
cost of sales 121,462 115,480 115,805 118,849 117,864 1,481,243 
gross profit 77,228 74,289 74,719 73,941 74,014 941,804 
selling, general and administrative  
  (sg&a) expenses 67,963 65,953 66,146 65,090 65,507 828,817 
operating income (loss) 9,264 8,335 8,572 8,851 8,506 112,975 
 Takara shuzo group 6,768 6,568 7,129 7,465 7,177 82,536 
 Takara Bio group 1,547 1,097 553 426 560 18,865 
 Takara Healthcare (114) (252) (316) (356) (500) (1,390)
 other (including eliminations) 1,063 921 1,206 1,315 1,268 12,963 

income before income taxes  
  and minority interests 8,590 7,505 8,208 8,193 8,321 104,756 
net income 3,995 3,788 4,677 5,639 4,658 48,719 
depreciation and amortization 5,209 5,384 5,652 5,992 6,384 63,524 
capital expenditures 5,330 3,735 3,645 3,616 3,852 65,000 
research and development (r&d) expenses 3,027 3,076 3,665 3,343 3,643 36,914 
cash flows provided by operating activities 9,013 9,462 10,452 8,954 9,816 109,914 
cash flows provided by (used in)  
  investing activities (4,779) (11,323) (7,350) (7,769) (411) (58,280)
cash flows provided by (used in)  
  financing activities (3,265) (3,199) (3,219) (9,294) 3,414 (39,817)
Free cash flow (note 3) 4,233 (1,861) 3,102 1,184 9,404 51,621 

as of March 31:
Total assets ¥197,437 ¥192,448 ¥195,495 ¥190,792 ¥207,843 $2,407,768 
interest-bearing debt 38,493 38,881 39,162 39,092 43,717 469,426 
Total equity 107,659 106,895 109,206 105,316 113,273 1,312,914 
Total shareholders’ equity 94,783 94,308 96,666 93,093 99,969 1,155,890 

per share of common stock  
(Yen and u.s. dollars (note 2)):
Basic net income ¥ 19.32 ¥ 18.21 ¥ 22.20 ¥ 26.32 ¥ 21.53 $0.23 
Total equity 461.41 454.21 459.92 437.42 462.00 5.63 
cash dividends 9.00 8.50 8.50 8.50 8.50 0.10 

ratios (%):
return on assets (roa) 2.0% 2.0% 2.4% 2.8% 2.2% —
return on equity (roe) 4.2 4.0 4.9 5.8 4.6 —
equity ratio 48.0 49.0 49.4 48.8 48.1 —
dividend payout ratio 46.6 46.7 38.3 32.3 39.5 —
shareholder return payout (note 4) 51.7 58.6 60.6 79.0 — —

notes:  1.  Japanese yen amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen. per share data information is rounded to the nearest yen, and ratios to the first decimal place.
 2.   The translations of Japanese yen amounts into u.s. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥82 to u.s.$1, the 

approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2012.
 3.  Free cash flow = cash flows provided by operating activities + cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities
 4.  shareholder return payout = (Total dividends + amount of share buybacks) ÷ deemed consolidated net income*
  * deemed consolidated net income = (consolidated ordinary income – interest income and dividends + interest payments) × (1 – effective tax rate)
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net sales
cost of sales ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

r&d expenses
r&d expenses to net sales ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

Total shareholders’ equity
roe
(Millions of Yen / %)

sg&a expenses
sg&a expenses ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

net income
net income to net sales ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

Total assets
roa
(Millions of Yen / %)

operating income
operating income to net sales ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

capital expenditures
depreciation and amortization
(Millions of Yen)

interest-Bearing debt
d/e ratio
(Millions of Yen / %)

 net sales
 cost of sales ratio

 r&d expenses
 r&d expenses to net sales ratio

 Total shareholders’ equity
 roe

 sg&a expenses
 sg&a expenses ratio

 net income
 net income to net sales ratio

 Total assets
 roa

 operating income
 operating income to net sales ratio

 capital expenditures
 depreciation and amortization

 interest-Bearing debt
 d/e ratio

d/e ratio = interest-bearing debt ÷Total shareholders’ equity ×100
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Major consolidated subsidiaries
as of March 31, 2012

name address issued capital
percentage of 

equity owned line of Business

Takara sHuZo co., lTd.
20 naginataboko-cho, shijo-dori karasuma Higashi-iru,
shimogyo-ku, kyoto 600-8688, Japan  
Tel 075-241-5110

¥1,000 million 100.0% Manufacture and sale of alcoholic beverages, 
seasonings, and raw alcohol

subsidiaries of Takara shuzo co., ltd.

Takara Butsuryu system co., ltd. 55-13 osumihama, kyotanabe, kyoto 610-0343, Japan
Tel 0774-68-1720 ¥50 million (100.0%) Transportation, warehousing, automobile service,  

non-life insurance agent, travel agent, etc.

Takara cHou un co., ltd. 22-38, nishidomari-cho, nagasaki 850-0075, Japan
Tel 095-894-8701 ¥250 million (100.0%) Transportation, customs broker, warehousing, etc.

komaki-zyouzou co., ltd.
12 Tokiyoshi, satsuma-cho, satsuma-gun, kagoshima 895-1816, 
Japan 
Tel 0996-53-0001

¥16 million (50.0%) Manufacture and sale of shochu

luc corporation, ltd. 2-12, 3-chome, akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-0052, Japan
Tel 03-3586-7501 ¥80 million (100.0%) import and sale of wine

Takara Bussan co., ltd. 9 Butai-cho, Fushimi-ku, kyoto 612-8338, Japan
Tel 075-601-6267 ¥10 million (100.0%) sale of feed

Takara Yoki co., ltd. 609 Takenaka-cho, Fushimi-ku, kyoto 612-8061, Japan
Tel 075-605-4540 ¥30 million (100.0%) Wholesale of glass bottles

Total Management Business co., ltd. 609 Takenaka-cho, Fushimi-ku, kyoto 612-8061, Japan
Tel 075-623-2660 ¥20 million (100.0%)

advertising agency, marketing research, sales 
promotion planning, temporary staffing service, and 
restaurant management

Takara sake usa inc. 708 addison st., Berkeley, ca 94710, u.s.a.
Tel 510-540-8250

us$7,000 
thousand (90.0%) Manufacture and sale of alcoholic beverages

age international, inc. 229 W. Main st., Frankfort, kY 40602, u.s.a.
Tel 502-223-9874 us$250 thousand (100.0%) sale of bourbon whisky

The Tomatin distillery co., ltd. Tomatin, inverness-shire, iV13 7YT scotland, u.k.
Tel 1463-248-148 £3,297 thousand (80.6%) Manufacture and sale of scotch whisky

Takara shuzo Foods co., ltd.
506 room, Huatengbeitang commercial Tallbuilding no. 37
nanmofang road, chaoyang district, Beijing, china 100022
Tel 10-519-0975

rMB130,000 
thousand (62.0%)

Manufacture and sale of alcoholic beverages,  
seasonings, and raw alcohol; import and sale of  
Takara shuzo group’s products

shanghai Takara shuzo international  
Trading co., ltd.

room 105, Building 12, no. 505, Zhong shan nan road  
shanghai, china 200010
Tel 21-6152-6623

rMB4,896 
thousand (100.0%) import and sale of Takara shuzo group’s products, 

and export of quality chinese products

FOODEX S.A.S. 4, impasse des carriéres, 75016 paris, France
Tel 1-4647-4439 €250 thousand (80.0%) import and wholesale of alcoholic beverages, foods, 

seasonings, etc.

Takara Bio inc. seta 3-4-1, otsu, shiga 520-2193, Japan
Tel 077-543-7212 ¥9,069 million 70.8%

Manufacture and sale of research reagents and sci-
entific instruments, contract research services and 
commercialization of gene therapy and cell therapy, 
and manufacture and sale of health foods and 
mushroom products

subsidiaries of Takara Bio inc.

Mizuho nourin co., ltd. 38 Mitsueda, Hoidani, kyotamba-cho, Funai-gun,  
kyoto 622-0313, Japan ¥10 million (49.0%) production and sale of mushrooms

Takara Bio Farming center inc. 4217 nagayoshi, osaki-cho, soh-gun, kagoshima 899-7306, Japan ¥3 million (48.3%) production and sale of ashitaba (angelica herb) and  
other agricultural products

kinoko center kin inc. 9006 aza-kin, kin-cho, kunigami-gun, okinawa 904-1201, Japan ¥5 million (49.0%) production and sale of mushrooms

Takara Biotechnology (dalian) co., ltd. no.19 dongbei 2nd street, development Zone, dalian,  
china 116600 ¥2,350 million (100.0%) development, production, and sale of research 

reagents

Takara Bio europe s.a.s. 2, avenue du president kennedy, 78100 st germain en laye, France €600 thousand (100.0%) sale of research reagents

Takara korea Biomedical inc. lotte new T castle 601, 429-1, gasan-dong, gumchun-gu,  
seoul 153-803, korea W3,860 million (100.0%) sale of research reagents and scientific instruments

Takara Biomedical Technology (Beijing)  
co., ltd.

Life Science Park, 22 KeXueYuan Road, Changping District, 
Beijing, china 102206 ¥1,030 million (100.0%) sale of research reagents, cell culture media,  

and gas-permeable bags

clontech laboratories, inc. 1290 Terra Bella avenue, Mountain View, ca 94043, u.s.a. us$83 thousand (100.0%) development and sale of research reagents

dss Takara Bio india private limited a-5 Mohan co-op industrial estate, Mathura road,  
new delhi 110044, india rp45 million (51.0%) sale of research reagents

subsidiaries of Takara Holdings inc.

Takara Healthcare inc.
85-1 Mikura-cho, sanjo-dori karasuma nishi-iru, nakagyo-ku,  
kyoto 604-8166, Japan
Tel 075-229-6901

¥90 million 100.0% development and sale of health foods

Taihei printing co., ltd.
55 kakegoshi-cho, nishi-shichijo, shimogyo-ku, kyoto 600-8881, 
Japan
Tel 075-313-7141

¥90 million 100.0% printing

Takara network system co., ltd.
20 naginataboko-cho, shijo-dori karasuma Higishi-iru,
shimogyo-ku, kyoto 600-8688, Japan
Tel 075-241-5139

¥30 million 100.0% development, operation, and maintenance of  
information systems

kawahigashi shoji co., ltd. 9 Butai-cho, Fushimi-ku, kyoto 612-8338, Japan
Tel 075-601-5211 ¥30 million 100.0% sale of alcoholic beverages and real estate leasing

note: percentage of equity owned in parentheses indicates percentage of indirectly owned equity.
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in the fiscal year under review, ended March 31, 2012, activity in 
the Japanese economy was limited due to the impact of the great 
east Japan earthquake, which occurred March 11, 2011, and to the 
concern for the electricity shortages that were the result of the 
ensuing incidents at the Tokyo electric power company, incorpo-
rated’s Fukushima daiichi nuclear power station. While there 
were signs of recovery in the second half of the fiscal year driven 
by the post-earthquake reconstruction demand, the continued 
appreciation of the Japanese yen coupled with the effects of the 
financial crisis in europe contributed to a persistence of the sense 
of uncertainty regarding the future of the economy. Further, con-
sumer spending was sluggish due to concerns for the future of 
pensions and the potential increases in consumption tax.
 in this environment, we endeavored to improve corporate 
value through the establishment of a balanced business structure 
that is readily adaptable to changing conditions by acting in 
accordance with the Takara group Medium-Term Management 
plan FY2014, which has “aiming to realize the Takara group 
Vision 2020, achieve stable growth in Japan while expanding 
business base in order to grow significantly overseas” as its basic 
policy. The Takara group Vision 2020 embodies our long-term 
management vision.

net sales
consolidated net sales increased 4.7% year on year, to ¥198,690 
million, allowing the group to achieve a record high for net  
sales regardless of the lingering impact of the great east Japan  
earthquake.
 analysis of performance by business segment is as follows.

Takara shuzo group
in the group’s core alcoholic beverages and seasonings business, 
competition further intensified owing to such factors as a declin-
ing drinking population, diversifying consumer tastes, and 
realignment in distribution channels triggered by deregulation in 
recent years. in addition, the decline in consumer confidence, a 
result of the concern for the future and the weak economy, and 
the shift toward low-priced products has made it difficult to 
transfer the impact of rising raw material prices to product selling 
prices, adding further difficulty to the operating environment.
 in this environment, the group focused on providing con-
sumers with safe and high-quality products and worked to nur-
ture its brands with its rich product lineup and its range of 
high-quality products differentiated through solid technological 
superiority.
 Takara shuzo co., ltd., the core operating company of the 
segment, suffered damages to its distribution bases in east Japan 
due to the earthquake. However, the company worked to rapidly 

reestablish production and supply systems while also accurately 
responding to market demand trends.
 For fiscal 2012, the Takara shuzo group’s net sales rose 5.2% 
year on year, to ¥175,503 million, thanks to brisk sales of light-
alcohol refreshers and a full-year contribution to business results 
from the group’s French subsidiary, FoodeX s.a.s., as a result 
of its inclusion as a consolidated subsidiary in the previous fiscal 
year. The breakdown of the segment’s net sales by product cate-
gory is as follows.
(percentages indicate year-on-year change)

• Shochu
 ¥73,458 million (increased 1.0%)
• Sake
 ¥20,967 million (increased 0.8%)
• Light-alcohol refreshers
 ¥26,725 million (increased 20.1%)
• Other liquors
 ¥10,776 million (increased 11.4%)
• Hon Mirin alcohol-based seasonings
 ¥14,718 million (decreased 1.4%)
• Other seasonings
 ¥7,423 million (increased 4.7%)
• Raw alcohol
 ¥6,512 million (increased 3.8%)
• Other
 ¥14,922 million (increased 14.1%)

Takara Bio group
leveraging biotechnologies it has cultivated over many years, the 
Takara Bio group focused its management resources on three busi-
nesses areas—the genetic engineering research business, the gene 
medicine business, and the agribio business—and worked to improve 
business results.
 For fiscal 2012, the Takara Bio group’s net sales were up 4.5% 
year on year, to ¥19,578 million, reflecting a year-on-year increase in 
revenue from mainstay research reagents, despite yen appreciation, 
and favorable revenue in the gene medicine business from technical 
support services relating to cancer immunotherapy. The breakdown 
of this segment’s net sales by product and service category is as follows.
(percentages indicate year-on-year change)

• Genetic engineering research
  ¥16,300 million (increased 2.6%)
 Research reagents
   ¥11,516 million (increased 3.0%)
 Scientific instruments
   ¥2,628 million (increased 4.6%)
 Contract research services and other
   ¥2,155 million (decreased 1.6%)

Management’s discussion and analysis
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• Gene medicine
 ¥842 million (increased 70.8%)
• Agribio
 ¥2,435 million (increased 3.1%)

Takara Healthcare
as its highest priority, Takara Healthcare is working to increase sales 
by building a mail-order sales network for health food products 
realized through the technology of Takara Bio inc. We aim to move 
this division into a position of profitability as soon as possible.
 For fiscal 2012, Takara Healthcare’s net sales declined 8.9% year 
on year, to ¥2,338 million, because lower sales in the tea beverage 
pB (private brand) supply business counteracted a favorable perfor-
mance by fucoidan-related products and the oeM (original equip-
ment manufacturer) business centered on hair care related products.

other
other comprises other subsidiaries, including a printing business. net 
sales in this segment declined 6.1% year on year, to ¥7,704 million.

gross profit, selling, general, and 
administrative (sg&a) expenses, and 
operating income
gross profit was up 4.0%, to ¥77,228 million, due to the increase 
in net sales, which was able to offset the slight increase in the cost 
of sales ratio due to the fact that raw material prices rose to a level 
that exceeded the influence of the strong yen, to changes in prod-
uct lineups, and to the impact of the earthquake.
 sg&a expenses rose 3.0%, to ¥67,963 million, largely due to 
the increased distribution and sales promotion expenses, which 
were incurred despite the continual cost-cutting measures the 
group has implemented in response to the harsh economic con-
ditions. regardless, operating income increased 11.2%, to ¥9,264 
million, as a result of the higher gross profit.
 The following is an overview of each business segment.

Takara shuzo group
The Takara shuzo group faced tough business conditions due to 
consumers’ growing preference for low-priced products, intense 
competition from breweries and other companies, a declining 
drinking population in Japan, and raw material price hikes. given 
these conditions, the group offered a broad lineup of differenti-
ated products—ranging from mass-market to high-value-added 
items—while unflaggingly advancing sales initiatives highlighting 
the distinctive features of these products.
 as for Takara shuzo, the great east Japan earthquake in 
March 2011 significantly affected its distribution bases. However, 
it only affected the company’s production bases slightly. conse-

quently, the company was able to restore production and supply 
operations rapidly and concentrate on providing stable product 
supplies. as a result, sales were favorable centered on light-alcohol 
refreshers, and as a whole the segment grew net sales 5.2% year on 
year, to ¥175,503 million. The segment’s operating income only 
rose 3.0% year on year, to ¥6,768 million, because of a deteriora-
tion in the gross profit margin due to a hike in the price of main-
stay ingredient ethanol (ethyl alcohol), higher transportation 
costs arising from the emergency response to the earthquake, and 
a rise in sales promotion expenses attributable to product mix 
changes.

Takara Bio group
overall, the segment saw higher net sales due primarily to a rise in 
mainstay research reagent sales, despite yen appreciation, and a sig-
nificant increase in revenue from the gene medicine business. The 
segment’s operating income was up 41.0% year on year, to ¥1,547 
million, because while net sales grew, sg&a expenses remained 
unchanged year on year thanks to lower personnel expenses and 
r&d expenses. as a result, Takara Bio inc. paid shareholders a divi-
dend for the first time since its establishment.
 The Takara Bio group is not only targeting increased revenue by 
expanding operations under its current business model. With its 
sights set on growing revenues dramatically in future, the group is also 
investing actively in new businesses such as gene medicine and 
agribio. Therefore, we believe continuing to accelerate investment in 
r&d is important.

Takara Healthcare
since its establishment, Takara Healthcare has been incurring a 
deficit. However, its first priority is to move into a position of 
profitability as soon as possible by increasing sales through the 
construction of a mail-order sales network for health food prod-
ucts. With the segment halving its operating loss year on year, to 
¥114 million, in fiscal 2012, the prospect of achieving operating 
income for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, has emerged. 
This improvement was due to the reduction of sg&a expenses, 
which compensated for an 8.9% year-on-year decline in net sales, 
to ¥2,338 million, as a result of lower sales in the tea beverage pB 
supply business.

other
in fiscal 2012, operating income in other was ¥190 million.
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other income (expenses) and  
net income
in regard to non-operating income and expenses, interest and 
dividends income as well as subsidy income contributed to higher 
non-operating income, and non-operating expenses such as inter-
est expenses and bond issuance cost were lower. accordingly, ordi-
nary income increased 14.1% year on year, to ¥9,617 million.
 in regard to extraordinary income and loss, there were losses 
attributable to the disposal of products due to the impact of the 
earthquake. However, these losses were less than the combined 
total of the disposal-related losses and loss on adjustment for 
changes of accounting standard for asset retirement obligations 
recorded in the previous fiscal year. as a result, income before 
income taxes and minority interests increased 14.5% year on year, 
to ¥8,590 million. also, net income was up 5.5% year on year, to 
¥3,995 million, regardless of the decline in deferred tax assets fol-
lowing changes in income tax rates.

cash Flows
net cash provided by operating activities decreased ¥448 million 
year on year, to ¥9,013 million. Major factors increasing cash 
included income before income taxes and minority interests of 
¥8,590 million, depreciation and amortization of ¥5,209 million, 
and increase in liquor taxes payable of ¥2,524 million. Major factors 
decreasing cash included increase in trade receivables of ¥5,787 
million and income taxes paid of ¥2,507 million.
 net cash used in investing activities decreased ¥6,543 million, 
to ¥4,779 million. Major factors decreasing cash included pur-
chases of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets of 
¥4,456 million.
 net cash used in financing activities was relatively unchanged 
from the previous fiscal year, at ¥3,265 million. Major factors 
decreasing cash included purchases of treasury stock of ¥1,085 
million and cash dividends paid of ¥1,781 million.
 as a result, cash and cash equivalents, end of year, including 
foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equiva-
lents, stood at ¥29,165 million, up ¥781 million from the previous 
fiscal year-end.

Financial position
Total assets at fiscal year-end stood at ¥197,437 million, up ¥4,988 
million from the previous fiscal year-end. This included total cur-
rent assets of ¥126,078 million, up ¥6,370 million from the previ-
ous fiscal year-end. Major factors included an increase in notes 
and accounts receivable–trade, net, due to higher sales and the 
fact that fiscal year-end was a holiday for financial institutions.
 noncurrent assets were ¥71,359 million, down ¥1,382 million 
from the previous fiscal year-end. Major factors included a ¥351 

million increase in net property, plant, and equipment, a result of 
the acquisition of land for real estate leasing operations; and a 
¥1,733 million decrease in total investments and other assets fol-
lowing a decrease in goodwill of ¥486 million and a decline in 
deferred tax assets of ¥509 million that accompanied the lowering 
of the effective income tax rate.
 Total current liabilities were ¥51,247 million, up ¥9,794 mil-
lion from the previous fiscal year-end, due mainly to the transfer-
ence of ¥5,000 million worth of bonds payable from noncurrent 
liabilities to current portion of long-term debt and to an increase 
in accrued liquor tax, a result of the fact that fiscal year-end was a 
holiday for financial institutions and other factors. Total long-
term liabilities were ¥38,530 million, down ¥5,570 million, pri-
marily due to the transference of bonds payable to current portion 
of long-term debt. as a result, total liabilities rose ¥4,223 million, 
to ¥89,777 million.
 Total equity amounted to ¥107,659 million, an increase of 
¥764 million from the previous fiscal year-end, reflecting a ¥746 
million increase in negative foreign currency translation adjust-
ments and a ¥1,070 million increase in treasury stock, acquired as 
part of measures for returns to shareholders, which offset a ¥2,227 
 million rise in retained earnings.

Medium-to-long-Term  
Business strategies
From april 2011, the group embarked on a new drive toward 
realizing a long-term management vision, the Takara group 
Vision 2020, which covers a ten-year period. Further, as the first 
step toward realizing this vision, the group has prepared the 
Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014 for the 
three-year period from fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2014.
 The Takara group Medium-Term Management plan FY2014 
establishes the basic policy of aiming to achieve stable growth in 
Japan while expanding the business base in order to grow signifi-
cantly overseas. The following is an outline of the plan.

Basic policy
aiming to realize the Takara group Vision 2020, achieve stable 
growth in Japan while expanding the business base in order to 
grow significantly overseas

Tangible goals
FY2014: Takara group net sales: at least ¥200 billion; operating 
income at least ¥10 billion; overseas sales accounting for at least 
10% of net sales; growth businesses + developing businesses 
accounting for at least 25% of net sales
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positioning of businesses  
and business policies
The group classifies its businesses as core business, growth  
businesses, or developing businesses according to their level 
of maturity.

core business strengthen profitability of core business as 
foundation of group’s growth

Domestic alcoholic beverages business
We will develop new products with differentiated quality and 
originality as well as foster brands. also, by further strengthening 
profit management and increasing operational efficiency, we will 
strengthen profitability and achieve stable growth. and, we will 
generate stable cash flows and support the group’s growth.

growth  
businesses

expand businesses in markets promising 
growth, drive the group’s overall growth

Overseas alcoholic beverages business,  
Japanese food ingredients wholesale business
We will establish sales networks overseas for the wholesale of Japa-
nese food ingredients. and, by maximizing synergies between the 
Japanese food ingredients wholesale business and the overseas 
alcoholic beverages business, we will accelerate business growth 
and drive the group’s overall growth.

Seasonings and raw alcohol business
We will expand businesses in the seasonings business for food pro-
cessing and raw alcohol business areas. at the same time, we 
intend to leverage the synergies from the integration of both busi-
nesses, accelerate the growth of B-to-B business, and drive the 
group’s overall growth.

Genetic engineering research business
By developing core technologies and opening up markets in Japan 
and overseas, including emerging countries, we will further 
increase sales and strengthen profitability, thereby driving the 
group’s overall growth.

developing 
businesses

establish operational foundation in growth 
 markets to create the growth businesses for the 
next plan

Health foods business
We will take steps to establish a business foundation with a view 
to dramatic growth. We aim to strengthen scientific evidence for 
health food ingredients by using Takara Bio’s technologies. also, 
through effective and efficient investment we will acquire new 

mail-order customers. and, we intend to increase sales by step-
ping up B-to-B sales promotion. Through these initiatives, we aim 
to move Takara Healthcare inc. into a position of profitability in 
fiscal 2013, the year ending March 31, 2013.

Gene medicine business
aiming to commercialize Japan’s first ex vivo gene therapy, we will 
advance clinical development. at the same time, we will seek 
higher sales of technical support services for cancer immunotherapy.

Financial policy
While maintaining a sound financial position, the group aims to 
invest in both growth and developing businesses, return profits to 
shareholders actively, and increase roe (return on equity).

analysis of capital resources  
and liquidity
regarding the Takara group’s liquidity, at the end of fiscal 2012, 
cash and cash equivalents stood at ¥29,165 million, up ¥781 mil-
lion from the previous fiscal year-end. This increase was attribut-
able to a ¥6,543 million decrease in net cash used in investing 
activities compared with the previous fiscal year’s net cash used in 
investing activities, which included the acquisition of FoodeX 
s.a.s. as a consolidated subsidiary. This decrease offset a ¥448 
million decline in net cash provided by operating activities, due to 
higher trade receivables, and a slight increase in net cash used in 
financing activities. Further, the acquisition of time deposits and 
short-term investment securities included in net cash used in 
investing activities are short-term investments for the purpose of 
managing surplus funds. Taking this into account, cash and cash 
equivalents were up from the previous fiscal year-end.
 at the moment, the group plans to conduct capital invest-
ment, finance returns to shareholders, and invest in growth and 
developing businesses using only funds on hand and internal 
reserves. in april 2012, however, to redeem bonds maturing in the 
fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, and onward, the group raised 
¥10,000 million by issuing straight bonds. Taking these factors 
and the current plan into consideration, the group has adequate 
liquidity.
 capital investment scheduled for the Takara shuzo group in 
fiscal 2013 is expected to be less than depreciation. However, there 
is the possibility that Takara Holdings will issue corporate bonds 
to acquire additional funds in the event that capital in excess of 
internal funds is required for new M&a activities or other invest-
ments. The company’s outstanding bonds have affirmed an a 
rating from rating and investment information, inc. (r&i), and 
Japan credit rating agency, ltd. (Jcr). in addition, the com-
pany has established commitment lines totaling ¥10,000 million 
to finance its dynamic working capital requirements.
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 currently, the Takara Bio group intends to finance short-
term r&d and capital investment through internal funds. 
However, it may be necessary to raise funds from other sources 
to finance the launch of new businesses and to expand the scope 
of existing businesses.

Business risks
The following are major potential risks to which the Takara group 
(the group and its affiliated companies) is exposed to in its busi-
ness and other activities. in addition, conditions that may not 
become a risk are also described from the viewpoint of positive 
information disclosure to investors.
 upon identification of the possibility of such risks, the group 
will make its best efforts to avoid such an occurrence or take 
countermeasures against such an occurrence. please note that the 
following descriptions do not cover all of the risk factors concern-
ing investment decisions.
 descriptions related to the possible occurrence of events in 
the future are based on the group’s judgments as of June 28, 2012, 
the date on which it filed its official company accounts.

(1)  Risks Concerning the Alcoholic Beverages and Seasonings 
Business and Its Business Environment

<1>  Risks concerning dependence on particular markets and products
More than 90% of sales of the group’s alcoholic beverages and 
seasonings business are generated within Japan, and its market is 
highly vulnerable to changes in the tastes of consumers. The 
group therefore strives to develop both original products that 
meet the ever-changing tastes of consumers and unique products 
that differentiate the group from competitors. However, changes 
in consumer trends have been accelerating recently. For this rea-
son, if the group fails to offer attractive products that satisfy the 
tastes of consumers and reflect market trends, business growth 
and profitability will suffer and may adversely affect the group’s 
business performance and financial position.
 Furthermore, in Japan both a low birthrate and a rapidly 
aging population are said to have already pushed the population 
into a declining trend. if this population decrease results in a 
decline in liquor demand, the group’s business may be adversely 
affected.

<2> Risks concerning market competition
The recent deregulation in alcoholic beverage retail licensing has 
drastically changed the liquor distribution structure and prompted 
competing companies to reduce prices and pursue new product 
strategies, which has intensified competition in the marketplace. 
in such a competitive business environment, the group is striving 
to address the challenges by developing and cultivating 

 high-value-added products, strengthening its brand power, carry-
ing out sales activities that reflect the  changes in distribution 
channels, and cutting costs. However, if competition increases to 
a level that cannot be countered by these measures and strategies, 
the group’s business performance and financial position may be 
adversely affected.

<3>  Risks concerning dependence on particular plants for  
manufacturing

Most of the group’s alcoholic beverage products are manufac-
tured at the Fushimi plant (Fushimi Ward, kyoto city) and the 
Matsudo plant (Matsudo city, chiba prefecture), both operated 
by Takara shuzo co., ltd. Furthermore, the group is expanding 
the production lines at these two plants. Therefore, in the event of 
a major earthquake or any other occurrence that prevents opera-
tions in either of these areas, it may threaten to seriously affect the 
manufacture and supply of products, which may adversely affect 
the group’s business performance and financial position. in addi-
tion, ethyl alcohol, a major raw material used by the group, is 
classified by the Fire service law as a hazardous material, class 4 
(inflammable liquid, possessing a serious risk of starting and 
spreading a fire, which, once started, is hard to extinguish).

<4> Risks concerning fluctuations of raw material prices
The group’s procurement of raw materials could be indirectly 
affected by the climatic and economic conditions of supplier 
countries and regions. ethanol for shochu and other products 
comes mainly from south america and asia, and rice for sake and 
other products is procured in Japan; therefore, the prices of these 
raw materials are influenced by weather conditions in these areas 
and the market for the raw material. recently, the purchase price 
of ethanol has been increasing, and any hike in the procurement 
cost of raw materials will cause an increase in our production cost. 
if this increase cannot be added to the sales price due to, for 
example, market conditions, this in turn may adversely affect the 
group’s business performance and financial  position.

<5> Risks concerning Japan’s legal regulations
The alcoholic beverages business of the group is subject to regula-
tions specified under the liquor Tax law that governs licenses for 
the manufacturing and/or selling of alcoholic beverages and 
liquor taxes in Japan. in accordance with the liquor Tax law, the 
group has obtained, in addition to the license as a seller, the 
license for manufacturing each type of product and for operating 
each manufacturing plant from the relevant taxation offices. in 
future business operations, the group will continue to be regu-
lated by the liquor Tax law, and consequently any change to the 
liquor tax rates may affect selling prices and sales trends.
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<6> Risks concerning social attitudes toward drinking
it has been said that drinking alcoholic beverages in moderation 
generally relieves weariness, increases appetite, eases stress, and 
works as a social lubricant. on the other hand, many problems in 
habitual drinking have been pointed out, such as intoxication, 
organ damage due to chronic drinking, alcoholism, under-age 
drinking, and damage to the fetus owing to drinking by pregnant 
women, characteristics of which are not seen in any other beverages 
or foods.
 realizing these problems, the group, as an organization pro-
ducing and selling alcoholic beverages, is carrying out various 
activities to spread the idea of “controlled, moderate drinking” from 
the viewpoint of meeting its social responsibilities by helping to 
maintain and improve people’s health. if these alcohol-attributable 
problems become more serious within society, the group’s produc-
tion and sales activities may be further regulated or otherwise 
affected, and the future growth, business performance, and  financial 
position of the group’s alcoholic beverages business may  deteriorate.

(2)  Risks Concerning the Biomedical Business and  
Its Business Environment

<1> Risks concerning R&D activities
in the Biomedical business, the group has been conducting a wide 
range of r&d activities in fields covering a broad range of biotech-
nology-related industries. The group considers these r&d activi-
ties extremely important in order to keep the group’s competitive 
edge. The group therefore aggressively invests in r&d. However, 
there is no guarantee that the r&d activities will advance as 
planned, and because clinical development in the gene medicine 
business takes a very long time, it is also not guaranteed that any 
r&d activities will bear fruit in a timely manner. a delay in r&d 
activities may adversely affect the business plans, business perfor-
mance, and financial position of the group’s Biomedical business. 
Furthermore, there is no guarantee that the r&d activities cur-
rently in progress will produce their expected results. such a failure 
could hinder the group from meeting its planned revenue-making 
expectations.

<2> Risks concerning market competition
currently, the revenue base of the group’s Biomedical business is 
generated by the genetic engineering research business, whose 
major product is research reagents related to the real-time poly-
merase chain reaction (pcr) method. However, the real-time 
pcr license granted to the group is not an exclusive license, with 
many other companies similarly granted the real-time pcr 
license, thereby intensifying competition. Moreover, unlike medi-
cal equipment, since neither permission nor approval is required 
for the manufacture and sale of scientific instruments, entry into 

the market is relatively easy; therefore, there are many competing 
companies in the market.
 in the gene medicine business, various genetic gene transfer 
methods and effective vectors have been developed recently, and 
the applications of gene therapy are expanding from congenital 
diseases, infectious diseases, and various types of cancer to non-
fatal chronic illnesses. Moreover, today, cell therapy is used 
to improve the quality of life (Qol) of patients and not just as 
a  cure for a disease. Thus, a potentially enormous market 
has opened up, which has resulted in many enterprises investing 
in gene and cell therapies r&d, centering on Western start-up 
businesses.
 in the agribio business, the health food industry is booming 
and many businesses, not just food manufacturers but many 
pharmaceutical companies as well, are entering the rapidly grow-
ing market. legal regulations impose restrictions only on the 
descriptions of efficacies and effects as well as also prohibiting the 
use of experimental data in sales promotions to differentiate prod-
uct offerings. as a result, this market is easy for companies to 
enter, which is consequently intensifying competition.
 under these market conditions, the group strives to start new 
business projects and commercialize projects in their r&d phase as 
quickly as possible. However, if a competitor successfully commercial-
izes a similar product or technology before the group does, or if a 
competitor commercializes a superior technology, the business plans, 
business performance, and financial position of the group may be 
adversely affected.

<3> Risks concerning dependence in manufacturing
currently, the group’s Biomedical business depends mostly on 
Takara Biotechnology (dalian) co., ltd., a chinese subsidiary of 
the Takara group, for manufacturing products related to the 
genetic engineering research business. in the future, the group’s 
reliance on this company is expected to grow. Therefore, in the 
event of a deterioration in security, a major earthquake, or any 
other occurrence that prevents operations in the region where this 
subsidiary is located, the whole group could lose most of its 
capacity to manufacture the products concerned, which may 
adversely affect the group’s business performance and financial 
position.

<4>  Risks concerning legal regulations specific to the Biomedical business
r&d activities in the genetic engineering research business are 
regulated by relevant legislations, such as the law concerning pre-
vention from radiation Hazards due to radioisotopes, etc., and 
the law concerning the conservation and sustainable use of Bio-
logical diversity through regulations on the use of living Modi-
fied organisms, and the group intends to observe these laws and 

39Takara Holdings inc.   annual reporT 2012



regulations. in sales of research reagents, the group is also required 
to follow the poisonous and deleterious substance control law. 
research reagents are not drugs as defined by the pharmaceutical 
affairs law, and consequently are not regulated by that law. How-
ever, if these regulations are tightened or new regulations are 
enforced following the expansion of industries providing research 
support services, the group’s business may be adversely affected.
 The relevant laws and regulations such as the pharmaceutical 
affairs law regulate the commercialization of gene and cell thera-
pies, and the group intends to comply with such laws and regula-
tions. These laws and regulations are concerned with securing the 
quality, effectiveness, and safety of drugs, quasi drugs, cosmetics, 
and medical instruments, and the trading of these products 
requires obtaining approval or permission from the relevant 
authorities. at present, there is no guarantee that the group will 
be granted necessary permission or approval based on the phar-
maceutical affairs law for each project for which it is carrying out 
r&d activities.
 in addition, new therapies such as activated immunotherapy 
may require approval or may become regulated by the pharma-
ceutical affairs law or Medical practitioners law in the future. in 
the event that these laws are tightened or a new regulation is intro-
duced, the group’s business strategy may be adversely affected.

<5> Risks concerning intellectual property rights
in biotechnology-related industries, where the success of business 
depends solely on the success of r&d activities, the group 
regards securing intellectual property rights, including patents, as 
extremely important, and it protects technologies developed in-
house with patents to prevent competitors from imitating them. 
The group will continue placing the highest priority on applying 
for patents in its r&d activities. all applications are not always 
registered, however, and when a registered patent is made invalid 
for any reason, or expires, the group’s business strategies or oper-
ational results may suffer an impact. in addition, the group is 
always mindful that, in biotechnology-related industries with 
continuous cutthroat competition in r&d, its technology that 
is  protected by a patent may be superseded at any time by a 
 competitor.
 The group is also willing to acquire or buy licenses for prom-
ising patent rights held by third parties, but this strategy may  
be prohibitively expensive or alternatively there is a possibility 
that the group may not be able to acquire licenses for necessary 
patent rights.

(3) Risks Shared by the Whole Group
<1>  Risks concerning impairment losses of investment securities
The group owns marketable securities. if their market values fall 

drastically, the difference between the acquisition cost and market 
price is booked as a loss for the fiscal year. such a loss may 
adversely affect the group’s business performance and financial 
position.

<2> Risks concerning impairment losses of fixed assets
The group owns fixed assets. if the group determines that an 
impairment loss should be recognized on any fixed assets or asset 
group specified by the accounting standard for impairment of 
fixed assets, the book value of the asset or asset group in question 
is lowered to the recoverable price, and the difference is booked as 
a loss for the fiscal year. such a loss may  adversely affect the 
group’s business performance and financial position.

<3> Risks concerning retirement benefit liabilities
The group calculates the cost of its employees’ retirement benefits 
and pension liabilities based on such preconditions as the discount 
rate used in actuarial calculations and the expected rate of return on 
pension assets. if the actual results are different from the precondi-
tions or the preconditions have changed, the effects are accumu-
lated and regularly recognized in the future, and generally affect 
expenses recognized and liabilities booked in future periods. if the 
yield on the investment in pension assets management worsens, it 
may adversely affect the group’s business performance and finan-
cial position.

<4> Risks concerning overseas operations
The group’s operations include the manufacture and sale of prod-
ucts in north america, europe, and china as well as other regions 
of asia. if any of these countries or regions experiences a drastic 
change in the condition of their economies, politics, and/or societ-
ies, or suffers damage from a natural disaster, such as a major earth-
quake, the demand for the group’s products could deteriorate and/
or production facilities might have to suspend production. such an 
occurrence could seriously affect the group’s business plans and 
performance.

<5> Risks concerning fluctuations in exchange rates
local currency-denominated items, including sales, expenses, 
and asset and liability accounts are translated into Japanese yen 
for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. These items may be affected by the exchange rate at 
translation.
 The group enters into foreign currency forward contracts and 
exchange rate hedging to minimize the adverse effects caused by 
short-term fluctuations in exchange rates. in the medium-to-long 
term, however, the group may fail to accurately carry out pro-
curement and sales activities as planned due to fluctuations in 
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exchange rates. Therefore, fluctuations in exchange rates may 
adversely affect the group’s business performance and financial 
position.

<6> Risks concerning product liability
all of the products developed and manufactured by the group are 
exposed to the risk of product liability compensation. if any 
defect is found during the manufacturing, selling, or clinical test-
ing process, or any health impairment is caused by an alcoholic 
beverage, food, drug, or medical instrument in particular, the 
group may be subject to a product liability claim. despite pos-
sessing product liability insurance, it is uncertain whether or not 
the insurance will cover the full amount of the final compensa-
tion. a defect that results in large-scale recalls or product liability 
com pensation not only causes a huge financial cost but also affects 
the group’s reputation, business performance, and financial  
position.

<7> Risks concerning legal regulations
The group is developing businesses in various countries and regions 
subject to local governmental regulations, such as those granting per-
mission to begin business operations or undertake investment, export 
restrictions because of national security or other reasons, and trade 
conditions, including tariff duties. The group is also subject to legis-
lation governing trade, monopoly, patent, consumer, taxation, for-
eign currency exchange, transportation, and environmental and 
recycling issues. if the group is unable to observe any of the legislative 
regulations, its activities may be restricted and an increase in costs 
may occur.
 also, as a corporation involved in the manufacture and sale of 
food products, the group maintains business facilities, manages 
equipment, containers and packages, as well as controls produc-
tion processes and sales activities in accordance with the provi-
sions of the Food sanitation law. The group observes the Food 
sanitation law and takes extra care to control food hygiene. Food 
safety matters, including food hygiene and such problems as 
intentional interference, are an unavoidable issue. Therefore, if 
any problem should arise related to this issue, the business perfor-
mance of the group may be adversely affected.
 Moreover, in sales of health foods, the group makes its best 
efforts to observe the provisions of the pharmaceutical affairs law 
in regard to expressing and advertising efficacies and effects and 
providing directions for proper usage. due to the general nature 
of health foods, however, the group cannot completely rule out 
the possibility of it violating any provision on mandatory infor-
mation. if any violation occurs within the group, trust in the 
group may deteriorate and the business performance of the 
group may be adversely affected.

 as the group is also selling certain products over the internet, the 
group is subject to mandatory information regulations based on the 
specified commercial Transactions law.

<8> Risks concerning information control
The group retains personal information about numerous indi-
viduals through, among other activities, sales promotion cam-
paigns and mail-order sales. The group takes every precaution to 
prevent the leakage of such information by establishing an infor-
mation control system, appointing personnel in charge of infor-
mation security, conducting ongoing staff training, and taking 
other related measures. However, the risk remains that some 
unexpected incidents could lead to the loss, leakage, or falsifica-
tion of personal and/or other internal information. in such cases, 
the group could lose its credibility among the general public, 
which may adversely affect the group’s business.

<9> Risks concerning lawsuits
The group strives to observe all the laws and regulations relevant 
to its business operations by enhancing its compliance measures. 
However, as the group conducts its business both within and out-
side Japan, there remains a risk of a third party filing a suit over 
such issues as the product liability law, intellectual property 
rights, or a claim for compensation for an invention irrespective 
of whether or not the group or its employees have violated any 
law. if a court case were to be brought against the group, or if the 
court decision were to go against the group, the group’s business 
performance and financial position may be adversely affected.
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars (note 1)

 2012 2011 2012

ASSETS 

currenT asseTs (note 16):
 cash and cash equivalents ¥  29,165 ¥  28,384 $  355,670 
 Time deposits 15,822 15,566 192,951
 Marketable securities (note 3) 1,515 1,496 18,475
 notes and accounts receivable:
  Trade 50,579 44,945 616,817
  associated companies 145 159 1,768
  other 644 1,087 7,853
  allowance for doubtful accounts (71) (81)  (865)
 inventories (notes 4 and 6) 24,481 24,298 298,548
 deferred tax assets (note 12) 2,346 2,568 28,609
 prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,449 1,282 17,670
    Total current assets 126,078 119,707 1,537,536

properTY, planT, and eQuipMenT (note 5):
 land 14,291 13,386 174,280
 Buildings and structures 42,087 42,658 513,256
 Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 74,328 74,834 906,439
 Tools, furniture, and fixtures 10,280 10,268 125,365
 lease assets 1,245 934 15,182
 construction in progress 621 253 7,573
    Total 142,854 142,335 1,742,121
 accumulated depreciation (100,857) (100,690)  (1,229,963)
    net property, plant, and equipment 41,996 41,645 512,146

inVesTMenTs and oTHer asseTs (note 16):
 investment securities (note 3) 15,648 15,745 190,829
 investments in, and advances to, associated companies 2,801 2,781 34,158
 goodwill 3,531 4,017 43,060
 deferred tax assets (note 12) 2,894 3,404 35,292
 other assets 4,486 5,146 54,707
    Total investments and other assets 29,362 31,095 358,073

ToTal ¥ 197,437 ¥ 192,448 $ 2,407,768 

see notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

consolidated Balance sheets
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
March 31, 2012 and 2011
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars (note 1)

 2012 2011 2012

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

currenT liaBiliTies (note 16):
 short-term bank loans (note 5) ¥   4,924 ¥   5,101 $    60,048 
 current portion of long-term debt (note 5) 5,346 300 65,195
 notes and accounts payable:
  Trade 13,956 13,440 170,195
  associated companies 7 25 85
  construction and other 2,930 2,531 35,731
 liquor taxes payable (note 6) 10,589 8,065 129,134
 accrued income taxes 2,207 1,785 26,914
 accrued expenses 6,001 5,627 73,182
 accrued sales promotion expenses 1,708 1,576 20,829
 other current liabilities (note 12) 3,572 2,996 43,560
    Total current liabilities 51,247 41,453 624,963

long-TerM liaBiliTies (note 16):
 long-term debt (note 5) 21,008 26,010 256,195
 liability for retirement benefits (note 7) 9,625 9,644 117,378
 deposits 5,881 6,119 71,719
 deferred tax liabilities (note 12) 1,074 1,269 13,097
 other 941 1,056 11,475
    Total long-term liabilities 38,530 44,100 469,878

conTingenT liaBiliTies (note 15)

eQuiTY (notes 8 and 19):
 common stock, authorized, 870,000,000 shares;  
     issued, 217,699,743 shares 13,226 13,226 161,292
 capital surplus 3,195 3,197 38,963
 retained earnings 88,012 85,784 1,073,317
 Treasury stock, at cost—12,277,683 shares in 2012 and 10,069,310 shares in 2011  (6,922) (5,852) (84,414)
 accumulated other comprehensive income:
  unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 2,805 2,754 34,207
  deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (note 17)  (17) (32)  (207)
  Foreign currency translation adjustments  (5,516) (4,770)  (67,268)
    Total 94,783 94,308 1,155,890
 Minority interests 12,876 12,587 157,024
    Total equity 107,659 106,895 1,312,914

ToTal ¥ 197,437 ¥ 192,448 $ 2,407,768 
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars (note 1)

 2012 2011 2012

neT sales (notes 10 and 21) ¥ 198,690 ¥ 189,769 $ 2,423,048 
cosT oF sales (notes 6, 7, 10, 14, and 21) 121,462 115,480 1,481,243
    gross profit 77,228 74,289 941,804

selling, general, and adMinisTraTiVe eXpenses (notes 7, 11, 14, and 21) 67,963 65,953 828,817 
    operating income 9,264 8,335 112,975 

oTHer incoMe (eXpenses):
 interest and dividend income 539 473 6,573
 real estate rent 108 111 1,317
 subsidy income 193 104 2,353
 gain on sales of property, plant, and equipment 233 72 2,841
 compensation for transfer 193 2,353
 interest expense  (501) (566)  (6,109)
 loss on disposals of property, plant, and equipment  (404) (238)  (4,926)
 adjustment for initial application of accounting standard  
  for asset retirement obligations (note 2.l ) (424)
 losses from a natural disaster (note 13)  (754) (396)  (9,195)
 other, net  (282) 35  (3,439)
    other expenses, net  (674) (829) (8,219) 

incoMe BeFore incoMe TaXes and MinoriTY inTeresTs 8,590 7,505 104,756 

incoMe TaXes (note 12):
 current 3,321 3,646 40,500
 deferred 851 (183) 10,378
    Total income taxes 4,173 3,463 50,890

neT incoMe BeFore MinoriTY inTeresTs (note 1) 4,417 4,042 53,865
MinoriTY inTeresTs in neT incoMe 421 254 5,134 

neT incoMe ¥   3,995 ¥   3,788 $    48,719 

Yen u.s. dollars (note 1)

per sHare oF coMMon sTock (notes 2.t and 19):
 Basic net income ¥ 19.32 ¥ 18.21 $ 0.23
 diluted net income 18.21
 cash dividends applicable to the year 9.00 8.50 0.10

see notes to consolidated financial statements.
 

consolidated statements of income
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars (note 1)

2012 2011 2012

neT incoMe BeFore MinoriTY inTeresTs ¥ 4,417 ¥ 4,042 $ 53,865 
 
oTHer coMpreHensiVe incoMe (loss) (note 18):
 unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 53 (1,260) 646
 deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting 17 (40) 207
 Foreign currency translation adjustments (892) (2,227) (10,878)
 share of other comprehensive income in associates (18) (42) (219)
     Total other comprehensive loss (839) (3,570) (10,231)

coMpreHensiVe incoMe (note 18) ¥ 3,577 ¥   471 $ 43,621 

ToTal coMpreHensiVe incoMe aTTriBuTaBle To (note 18):
 owners of the parent ¥ 3,314 ¥   633 $ 40,414 
 Minority interests 263 (161) 3,207

see notes to consolidated financial statements.

 Thousands Millions of Yen

 accumulated other  
comprehensive income

 

number of 
shares of 
common 

stock 
outstanding

common 
stock

capital 
surplus

retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

unrealized 
gain on 

available- 
for-sale 

securities

deferred gain 
(loss) on 

derivatives 
under Hedge 
accounting

Foreign 
currency 

Translation 
adjustments Total

Minority 
interests Total equity

Balance, april 1, 2010 210,179 ¥ 13,226 ¥ 3,198 ¥ 83,785 ¥ (4,650) ¥  4,007 ¥  18 ¥ (2,918) ¥ 96,666 ¥ 12,540 ¥ 109,206

 net income 3,788 3,788 3,788

 cash dividends, ¥8.5 per share (1,789) (1,789) (1,789)

 net increase of treasury stock (2,550) (1) (1,201) (1,202) (1,202)

 net change in the year      (1,252) (50) (1,851) (3,154) 46 (3,108)

Balance, MarcH 31, 2011 207,630 13,226 3,197 85,784 (5,852) 2,754 (32) (4,770) 94,308 12,587 106,895

 net income 3,995 3,995 3,995

 cash dividends, ¥9.0 per share (1,767) (1,767) (1,767)

 net increase of treasury stock (2,208) (1) (1,070) (1,072) (1,072)

 net change in the year      51  14 (746) (680) 289 (391)

Balance, MarcH 31, 2012 205,422 ¥ 13,226 ¥ 3,195 ¥ 88,012 ¥ (6,922) ¥ 2,805 ¥ (17) ¥ (5,516) ¥ 94,783 ¥ 12,876 ¥ 107,659

  Thousands of u.s. dollars (note 1)

  accumulated other  
comprehensive income

  
common 

stock
capital 
surplus

retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

unrealized 
gain on 

available- 
for-sale 

securities

deferred gain 
(loss) on 

derivatives 
under Hedge 
accounting

Foreign 
currency 

Translation 
adjustments Total

Minority 
interests Total equity

Balance, MarcH 31, 2011 $ 161,292 $ 38,987 $ 1,046,146 $ (71,365) $ 33,585 $ (390) $ (58,170) $ 1,150,097 $ 153,500 $ 1,303,597

 net income 48,719 48,719 48,719

 cash dividends, $0.10 per share (21,548) (21,548) (21,548)

 net increase of treasury stock (12) (13,048) (13,073) (13,073)

 net change in the year      621 170 (9,097) (8,292) 3,524 (4,768) 

Balance, MarcH 31, 2012  $ 161,292 $ 38,963 $ 1,073,317 $ (84,414) $ 34,207 $ (207) $ (67,268) $ 1,155,890 $ 157,024 $ 1,312,914

see notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated statements of comprehensive income
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

consolidated statements of changes in equity
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars (note 1)

 2012 2011 2012

operaTing acTiViTies:
 income before income taxes and minority interests ¥  8,590 ¥  7,505 $ 104,756 
 adjustments for:
  income taxes paid  (2,507) (3,620)  (30,573)
  depreciation and amortization 5,209 5,384 63,524
  increase in accrued sales promotion expenses 132 114 1,609
  net loss on sales and disposals of property, plant, and equipment 171 166 2,085
  loss on write-down of investment securities 108 254 1,317
  changes in assets and liabilities:
   (increase) decrease in trade receivables  (5,787) 932  (70,573)
   increase in inventories  (455) (435)  (5,548)
   (increase) decrease in interest and dividend receivable  (23) 18  (280)
   increase in other current assets  (175) (98)  (2,134)
   increase (decrease) in trade payables 570 (555) 6,951
   increase in liquor taxes payable 2,524 126 30,780
   increase (decrease) in consumption taxes payable 391 (106) 4,768
 other, net 262 (223) 3,195
    Total adjustments 422 1,956 5,146
    net cash provided by operating activities 9,013 9,462 109,914

inVesTing acTiViTies:
 proceeds from sales of property, plant, and equipment 647 87 7,890
 proceeds from sales and redemption of marketable securities 1,680 2,255 20,487
 proceeds from sales of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 87
 purchases of property, plant, and equipment  (4,335) (2,688)  (52,865)
 purchases of marketable securities and investment securities  (2,030) (3,603)  (24,756)
 increase in time deposits, net  (276) (4,062)  (3,365)
 purchase of FoodeX s.a.s., net of cash acquired (3,384)
 other, net  (465) (14)  (5,670)
    net cash used in investing activities  (4,779) (11,323)  (58,280)

Financing acTiViTies:
 proceeds from issuance of bonds 9,923
 redemption of bonds (5,000)
 purchases of treasury stock  (1,085) (1,207)  (13,231)
 cash dividends paid  (1,781) (1,796)  (21,719)
 other, net  (397) (5,119)  (4,841)
    net cash used in financing activities  (3,265) (3,199)  (39,817)

Foreign currencY TranslaTion adJusTMenTs on  
 casH and casH eQuiValenTs  (186) (179)  (2,268)
neT increase (decrease) in casH and casH eQuiValenTs 781 (5,240) 9,524
casH and casH eQuiValenTs, Beginning oF THe Year 28,384 33,624 346,146
casH and casH eQuiValenTs, end oF Year ¥ 29,165 ¥ 28,384 $ 355,670 

see notes to consolidated financial statements.

consolidated statements of cash Flows
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
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a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 
2012 include the accounts of the company and its 37 (36 in 2011) subsid-
iaries (together, the “group”). under the control or influence concept, 
those companies in which the company, directly or indirectly, is able to 
exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those compa-
nies over which the group has the ability to exercise significant influence 
are accounted for by the equity method.
 investments in three (three in 2011) associated companies are 
accounted for by the equity method. investments in the remaining associ-
ated companies are stated at cost. if the equity method of accounting had 
been applied to the investments in these companies, the effect on the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be material.
 The difference of the cost of acquisition from the fair value of the net 
assets of an acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition is recorded as 
goodwill and amortized on a pro rata basis over a certain period, not 
exceeding 20 years.
 all significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. all material unrealized profit included in 
assets resulting from transactions within the group is also eliminated.

b. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries 
for the Consolidated Financial Statements—in May 2006, the 
accounting standards Board of Japan (the “asBJ”) issued asBJ practical 
issues Task Force (piTF) no. 18, “practical solution on unification of 
accounting policies applied to Foreign subsidiaries for the consolidated 
Financial statements.” piTF no. 18 prescribes (1) the accounting policies 
and procedures applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries for simi-
lar transactions and events under similar circumstances should in princi-
ple be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, 
(2)  financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accordance 
with either international Financial reporting standards or the generally 
accepted accounting principles in the united states of america tenta-
tively may be used for the consolidation process, (3) however, the follow-
ing items should be adjusted in the consolidation process so that net 
income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese gaap, unless they 
are not material: 1) amortization of goodwill; 2) scheduled amortization 
of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been directly recorded in the 
equity; 3) expensing capitalized development costs of r&d; 4) cancella-
tion of the fair value model accounting for property, plant, and equip-
ment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model 
accounting; and 5) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if 
 contained in net income.

c. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Associated 
Companies for the Equity Method—in March 2008, the asBJ issued 
asBJ statement no. 16, “accounting standard for equity Method of 
accounting for investments.” The new standard requires adjustments to 

be made to conform the associate’s accounting policies for similar transac-
tions and events under similar circumstances to those of the parent com-
pany when the associate’s financial statements are used in applying the 
equity method, unless it is impracticable to determine such adjustments. 
in addition, financial statements prepared by foreign associated compa-
nies in accordance with either international Financial reporting stan-
dards or the generally accepted accounting principles in the united states 
of america tentatively may be used in applying the equity method if the 
following items are adjusted so that net income is accounted for in accor-
dance with Japanese gaap, unless they are not material: 1) amortization 
of goodwill; 2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pen-
sions that has been directly recorded in; 3) expensing capitalized develop-
ment costs of r&d; 4) cancellation of the fair value model accounting for 
property, plant, and equipment and investment properties and incorpora-
tion of the cost model accounting; and 5) exclusion of minority interests 
from net income, if contained in net income.

d. Business Combination—in october 2003, the Business accounting 
council issued a statement of opinion, “accounting for Business com-
binations,” and in december 2005, the asBJ issued asBJ statement no. 
7, “accounting standard for Business divestitures” and asBJ guidance 
no. 10, “guidance for accounting standard for Business combinations 
and Business divestitures.” The accounting standard for business combi-
nations allows companies to apply the pooling of interests method of 
accounting only when certain specific criteria are met such that the busi-
ness combination is essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests. For 
business combinations that do not meet the uniting-of-interests  criteria, 
the business combination is considered to be an acquisition and the pur-
chase method of accounting is required. This standard also prescribes the 
accounting for combinations of entities under common control and for 
joint  ventures.
 in december 2008, the asBJ issued a revised accounting standard 
for business combinations, asBJ statement no. 21, “accounting stan-
dard for Business combinations.” Major accounting changes under the 
revised accounting standard are as follows: (1) The revised standard 
requires accounting for business combinations only by the purchase 
method. as a result, the pooling of interests method of accounting is no 
longer allowed; (2) The previous accounting standard required research 
and development costs to be charged to income as incurred. under the 
revised standard, in-process research and development costs (ipr&d) 
acquired in the business combination is capitalized as an intangible asset; 
(3) The previous accounting standard provided for a bargain purchase 
gain (negative goodwill) to be systematically amortized over a period not 
exceeding 20 years. under the revised standard, the acquirer recognizes 
the bargain purchase gain in profit or loss immediately on the acquisition 
date after reassessing and confirming that all of the assets acquired and 
all of the liabilities assumed have been identified after a review of the 

1. Basis oF presenTaTion oF consolidaTed Financial sTaTeMenTs
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial 
instruments and exchange act and its related accounting regulations, 
and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan 
(“Japanese gaap”), which are different in certain respects as to the appli-
cation and disclosure requirements of international Financial reporting 
standards.
 in preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassi-
fications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated  financial 
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which 
is more familiar to readers outside Japan. in addition, certain reclassifica-
tions have been made in the 2011 financial statements to conform to the 
classifications used in 2012.

 The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the 
currency of the country in which Takara Holdings inc. (the “company”) 
is incorporated and operates. Japanese yen figures less than a million yen 
are rounded down to the nearest million yen, except for per share data 
and the amounts in note 9. The translations of Japanese yen amounts 
into u.s. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of read-
ers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥82 to $1, the approx-
imate rate of exchange at March 31, 2012. u.s. dollar figures less than a 
thousand dollars are rounded down to the nearest thousand dollar, except 
for per share data and the amounts in note 9. such translations should 
not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could 
be converted into u.s. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. suMMarY oF signiFicanT accounTing policies

notes to consolidated Financial statements
Takara Holdings inc. and consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
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procedures used in the purchase allocation. The revised standard was 
applicable to business combinations undertaken on or after april 1, 2010.

e. Cash Equivalents—cash equivalents are short-term investments that 
are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk 
of changes in value. cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of 
deposits, trust fund investments, commercial paper, and trust beneficiary 
rights, all of which mature or become due within three months of the date 
of acquisition.

f. Marketable and Investment Securities—Marketable and investment 
securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management’s 
intent, as follows: (1) held-to-maturity debt securities, for which there is 
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at amor-
tized cost and (2) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as 
either of the aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with 
unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate 
component of equity.
 non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost deter-
mined by the moving-average method.
 For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, investment securities 
are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income. 

g. Inventories—inventories are stated principally at the lower of cost, 
determined by the average method, or net selling value.

h. Property, Plant, and Equipment—property, plant, and equipment 
are stated at cost. depreciation is computed principally by the declining- 
balance method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
The range of useful lives is principally from three to 50 years for buildings 
and structures and from four to 15 years for machinery, equipment, 
and vehicles.

i. Long-Lived Assets—The group reviews its long-lived assets for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the 
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. an 
impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset 
or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows 
expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the 
asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the 
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the con-
tinued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at 
disposition. 

j. Goodwill—The company and its domestic and overseas subsidiaries 
amortize goodwill on a pro rata basis over a certain period, not exceeding 
20 years. accounting for impairment of long-lived assets also applies to 
goodwill.
 The company’s consolidated subsidiary in the u.s. records goodwill 
according to Financial accounting standards Board accounting stan-
dards codification Topic 350 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The 
u.s. subsidiary records goodwill as the excess of the purchase price over 
the fair value of the enterprise, which is tested for impairment at least 
annually at the reporting unit level.

k. Retirement and Pension Plans—each of the employees’ retirement 
benefit programs of the company and certain subsidiaries consist of an 
unfunded lump-sum severance payment plan and a defined benefit cor-
porate pension plan as described in note 7.
 The group accounted for the liability for retirement benefits based 
on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance  
sheet date. 

l. Asset Retirement Obligations—in March 2008, the asBJ published 
asBJ statement no. 18, “accounting standard for asset retirement 
obligations” and asBJ guidance no. 21, “guidance on accounting 
standard for asset retirement obligations.” under this accounting stan-
dard, an asset retirement obligation is defined as a legal obligation 
imposed either by law or contract that results from the acquisition, con-
struction, development, and normal operation of a tangible fixed asset 
and is associated with the retirement of such tangible fixed asset. The asset 
retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted cash 
flows required for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the period 
in which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable estimate can be made. 
if a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligation cannot be made 
in the period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability 
should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement 
obligation can be made. upon initial recognition of a liability for an asset 
retirement obligation, an asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing 
the carrying amount of the related fixed asset by the amount of the liability. 
The asset retirement cost is subsequently allocated to expense through 
depreciation over the remaining useful life of the asset. over time, the 
liability is accreted to its present value each period. any subsequent revi-
sions to the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted 
cash flows are reflected as an increase or a decrease in the carrying amount of 
the liability and the  capitalized amount of the related asset retirement cost. 

m. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The allowance for doubtful 
accounts is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based on the 
group’s past credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses 
in the receivables outstanding.

n. Accrued Sales Promotion Expenses—accrued sales promotion 
expenses are stated at amounts considered to be appropriate based on the 
purchased quantities of finished products by retail stores, identified by 
Takara shuzo co., ltd., a consolidated subsidiary, multiplied by the past 
year actual unit cost of the relevant product. 

o. Leases—in March 2007, the asBJ issued asBJ statement no. 13, 
“accounting standard for lease Transactions,” which revised the previous 
accounting standard for lease transactions issued in June 1993. The revised 
accounting standard for lease transactions was effective for fiscal years 
beginning on or after april 1, 2008.
 under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that were 
deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were 
capitalized. However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted 
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information 
was disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements. The revised 
accounting standard requires that all finance lease transactions be capital-
ized by recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet. 
in addition, the accounting standard permits leases which existed at the 
 transition date, and do not transfer ownership of the leased property to 
the lessee to continue to be accounted for as operating lease transactions.
 The group applied the revised accounting standard effective april 1, 
2008. lease assets related to finance lease transactions without title trans-
fer are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the leased periods as their 
useful lives and with no residual value. in addition, the group accounted 
for leases which existed at the transition date and do not transfer owner-
ship of the leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions. 
 all other leases are accounted for as operating leases.

p. Income Taxes—The provision for income taxes is computed based on 
the pretax income included in the consolidated statements of income. 
The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets 
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary dif-
ferences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities. deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax 
laws to the temporary differences.
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q. Foreign Currency Transactions—all short-term and long-term mon-
etary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance sheet 
date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are recog-
nized in the consolidated statements of income to the extent that they are 
not hedged by forward exchange contracts.

r. Foreign Currency Financial Statements—The balance sheet accounts 
of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at 
the current exchange rate as of the balance sheet date, except for equity, 
which is translated at the historical rate. The resulting translation differ-
ences, less those attributable to minority interests, are shown as “Foreign 
currency translation adjustments” under accumulated other comprehen-
sive income in a separate component of equity. revenue and expense 
accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese 
yen at the average exchange rate.

s. Derivative Financial Instruments—The group uses derivative finan-
cial instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts, foreign cur-
rency options, and foreign currency swaps, as a means of hedging exposure 
to foreign currency risks. The group does not enter into derivatives for 
trading or speculative purposes.
 derivative financial instruments and foreign currency transactions 
are classified and accounted for as follows: (1) all derivatives are recog-
nized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or 
losses on derivative transactions are recognized in the consolidated state-
ments of income and (2) for derivatives used for hedging purposes, if such 
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and 
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, 
gains or losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged 
transactions.
 Foreign currency forward contracts are utilized to hedge payments of 
royalties and foreign currency import transactions. payables denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the contracted rates if the forward 
contracts qualify for hedge accounting.
 Foreign currency options are utilized to hedge foreign currency expo-
sures in the procurement of raw materials from overseas suppliers. These 
options, which qualify for hedge accounting, are measured at fair value at 
the balance sheet date and the unrealized gains or losses are deferred until 
maturity as an other liability or asset. Foreign currency swaps are utilized 
to hedge market risk from the changes in foreign exchange rates associ-
ated with advances to subsidiaries denominated in foreign currencies.

t. Per Share Information—Basic net income per share is computed by 
dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
 diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that 
could occur if securities were exercised into common stock. diluted net 
income per share of common stock assumes full exercise of outstanding 
stock options.
 cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consoli-
dated statements of income are dividends applicable to the respective 
years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

u. Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—in december 2009, 
asBJ issued asBJ statement no. 24, “accounting standard for account-
ing changes and error corrections” and asBJ guidance no. 24, “guid-
ance on accounting standard for accounting changes and error 
corrections.” accounting treatments under this standard and guidance 
are as follows: (1) changes in accounting policies—When a new account-
ing policy is applied with revision of accounting standards, the new policy 
is applied retrospectively, unless the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions. When the revised accounting standards 
include specific transitional provisions, an entity shall comply with the 
specific transitional provisions. (2) changes in presentations—When the 

presentation of financial statements is changed, prior-period financial 
statements are reclassified in accordance with the new presentation. (3) 
changes in accounting  estimates—a change in an accounting estimate 
is accounted for in the period of the change, if the change affects that 
period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the change affects both 
the period of the change and future periods. (4) corrections of prior- 
period errors—When an error in prior-period financial statements is 
discovered, those statements are restated. This accounting standard and 
the guidance are applicable to accounting changes and corrections of 
prior-period errors which are made from the beginning of the fiscal year 
that begins on or after april 1, 2011.

v. New Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits—on May 17, 2012, the 
asBJ issued asBJ statement no. 26, “accounting standard for retire-
ment Benefits” and asBJ guidance no. 25, “guidance on accounting 
standard for retirement Benefits,” which replaced the accounting stan-
dard for retirement Benefits that had been issued by the Business 
accounting council in 1998 with effective date of april 1, 2000, and the 
other related practical guidance, being followed by partial amendments 
from time to time through 2009.
 Major changes are as follows:
(a) Treatment in the balance sheet
  under the current requirements, actuarial gains and losses and past 

service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are not 
recognized in the balance sheet, and the difference between retire-
ment benefit obligations and plan assets (hereinafter, “deficit or sur-
plus”), adjusted by such unrecognized amounts, are recognized as a 
liability or asset.

   under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses 
and past service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss 
shall be recognized within equity (accumulated other comprehensive 
income), after adjusting for tax effects, and the deficit or surplus shall 
be recognized as a liability (liability for retirement benefits) or asset 
(asset for retirement benefits).

(b)  Treatment in the statement of income and the statement of compre-
hensive income (or the statement of income and comprehensive 
income)

  The revised accounting standard would not change how to recognize 
actuarial gains and losses and past service costs in profit or loss. Those 
amounts would be recognized in profit or loss over a certain period, 
no longer than the expected average remaining working lives of the 
employees. However, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs 
that arose in the current period and are yet to be recognized in profit 
or loss shall be included in other comprehensive income and actuarial 
gains and losses and past service costs that were recognized in 
other comprehensive income in prior periods and then recognized in 
profit or loss in the current period shall be treated as reclassification 
adjustments.

 This accounting standard and the guidance are effective for the end of 
annual periods beginning on or after april 1, 2013, with earlier applica-
tion being permitted from the beginning of annual periods beginning on 
or after april 1, 2013. However, no retrospective application of this 
accounting standard to consolidated financial statements in prior periods 
is required.
 The company expects to apply the revised accounting standard from 
the end of the annual period beginning on april 1, 2013 and is in the 
process of measuring the effects of applying the revised accounting stan-
dard for the year ending March 31, 2014.
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3. MarkeTaBle and inVesTMenT securiTies
Marketable and investment securities as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following:

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011  2012

current: 
 government and corporate bonds ¥    987 ¥    975 $  12,036
 other 528 521 6,439
  Total ¥  1,515 ¥  1,496 $  18,475
non-current:
 investment equity securities ¥ 15,597 ¥ 15,667 $ 190,207
 government and corporate bonds 50 78 609 
  Total ¥ 15,648 ¥ 15,745 $ 190,829

 The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows: 
 Millions of Yen

March 31, 2012 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses Fair Value

securities classified as available-for-sale:
 equity securities ¥ 10,194 ¥ 5,369 ¥ 1,092 ¥ 14,470
 debt securities 485 3 489
 others 528 528
Held-to-maturity 500   500 

 Millions of Yen

March 31, 2011 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses Fair Value

securities classified as available-for-sale:
 equity securities ¥ 9,993 ¥ 5,714 ¥ 1,165 ¥ 14,541
 debt securities 500 5 505
 others 521 521
Held-to-maturity 500   500

 Thousands of u.s. dollars

March 31, 2012 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses Fair Value

securities classified as available-for-sale:
 equity securities $ 124,317 $ 65,475 $ 13,317 $ 176,463
 debt securities 5,914 36 5,963
 others 6,439 6,439
Held-to-maturity 6,097   6,097 

 The information for available-for-sale securities, which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows: 
Millions of Yen

March 31, 2012 proceeds realized gains realized losses

available-for-sale:
 equity securities ¥  3 ¥ 2 ¥ 0
 debt securities 41 1  
  Total ¥ 45 ¥ 3 ¥ 0

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2011 proceeds realized gains realized losses

available-for-sale:
 equity securities ¥ 873 ¥ 417
 debt securities 42   
  Total ¥ 915 ¥ 417  

Thousands of u.s. dollars

March 31, 2012 proceeds realized gains realized losses

available-for-sale:
 equity securities $  36 $ 24 $ 0
 debt securities 500 12  
  Total $ 548 $ 36 $ 0

 The impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, were ¥108 million ($1,317 thousand) and 
¥254 million, respectively. 
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4. inVenTories
inventories at March 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following:

 
 

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011  2012

Finished products and merchandise ¥ 13,184 ¥ 13,394 $ 160,780
semifinished products 7,662 7,157 93,439
Work in process 886 964 10,804
raw materials and supplies 2,747 2,782 33,500 
  Total ¥ 24,481 ¥ 24,298 $ 298,548

6. liQuor TaXes paYaBle
liquor taxes are calculated at various rates according to the quantities of categorized beverages containing more than 1% of alcohol when delivered from manu-
facturing lots or taken outside of the bonded area. liquor taxes are included in cost of sales and inventories. liquor taxes payable are to be paid by the end of the 
second month following delivery or after being taken outside the bonded area.

5. sHorT-TerM Bank loans and long-TerM deBT
short-term bank loans consisted principally of term loans with interest at annual rates ranging from 0.741% to 3.250% and from 0.750% to 19.177% at 
March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
 long-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following:

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011  2012

loans principally from banks, due serially to January 2022, with interest rates ranging  
 from 0% to 9.50% (0% to 4.78% in 2011):
 collateralized ¥    197 ¥    215 $   2,402
 unsecured 392 427 4,780
0.89% unsecured bonds, due May 2013 5,000 5,000 60,975
1.40% unsecured bonds, due september 2012 5,000 5,000 60,975
1.96% unsecured bonds, due september 2017 5,000 5,000 60,975
0.587% unsecured bonds, due May 2015 5,000 5,000 60,975
1.561% unsecured bonds, due May 2020 5,000 5,000 60,975
obligation under finance leases 764 668 9,317
  Total 26,354 26,311 321,390
less current portion 5,346 300 65,195 
long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 21,008 ¥ 26,010 $ 256,195

 annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2012, for the next five years and thereafter were as follows:
 
Years ending March 31

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

2013 ¥  5,346 $  65,195
2014 5,324 64,926
2015 279 3,402
2016 5,126 62,512
2017 97 1,182
2018 and thereafter 10,180 124,146 
  Total ¥ 26,354 $ 321,390

 at March 31, 2012, buildings and structures of ¥372 million ($4,536 thousand) and land of ¥250 million ($3,048 thousand) were pledged as collateral for 
long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) of ¥197 million ($2,402 thousand).
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The company and certain of its subsidiaries have severance payment 
plans for employees. in conjunction with the enactment of the defined 
Benefit corporation pension act, the company and certain of its subsid-
iaries reviewed and revised part of their retirement benefit regulations 
effective on april 1, 2011. The companies plan to transfer from the current 
lump-sum payment plans and tax-qualified pension plans to new lump-
sum payment plans and defined benefit corporate pension plans.
 under most circumstances, employees terminating their employ-
ment are entitled to certain lump-sum severance payments based on their 
rate of pay at the time of termination, length of service, and certain other 
factors. in most circumstances, if the termination is involuntary, caused 

by retirement at the mandatory retirement age, or caused by death, 
employees are entitled to greater payments than in the case of voluntary 
termination.
 The company and certain domestic subsidiaries have defined benefit 
corporate pension plans covering all employees. under the plans, employ-
ees terminating their employment are, in most circumstances,  entitled to 
pension payments based on their rates of pay at the time of termination 
and length of service.
 certain domestic subsidiaries have contributory-funded pension 
plans of the integrated establishment type.

 in addition, certain information related to multi-employer plans, for which contribution amounts are accounted for as a net periodic benefit, is 
disclosed as follows:

(1) Financial status of entire multi-employer plans
a. contributory-funded pension plan for Truck Business in kyoto prefecture

   
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

  as of March 31, 2012 as of March 31, 2011 as of March 31, 2012

amount of plan assets ¥  9,505 ¥ 10,210 $ 115,914
amount of benefit obligation in pension financial calculation 12,837 13,051 156,548
  net balance ¥  (3,331) ¥ (2,840) $  (40,621)

b. contributory-funded pension plan for Truck Business in nagasaki prefecture
   

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

  as of March 31, 2012 as of March 31, 2011 as of March 31, 2012

amount of plan assets ¥ 8,504 ¥ 8,655 $ 103,707
amount of benefit obligation in pension financial calculation 7,923 8,043 96,621
  net balance ¥   581 ¥   612 $   7,085

(2) Percentage of the Group’s contribution in the entire multi-employer plans
a. contributory-funded pension plan for Truck Business in kyoto prefecture

as of March 31, 2012 4.1%
as of March 31, 2011 3.9%

b. contributory-funded pension plan for Truck Business in nagasaki prefecture

as of March 31, 2012 9.6%
as of March 31, 2011 11.6%

7. reTireMenT and pension plans

(3) Supplementary explanation
The primary factors of the net balance related to the contributory-funded 
pension plan for the Truck Business in kyoto prefecture in (1) above com-
prise the amount of prior service cost in the pension financial calculation 
of ¥1,358 million ($16,560 thousand) (¥834 million in the prior fiscal 
year); adjustment for valuation of assets of ¥711 million ($9,402 thou-
sand) (¥1,531 million in the prior fiscal year); and current deficit of ¥1,262 
million ($15,390 thousand) (¥475 million in the prior fiscal year). The 
companies will ratably amortize prior service costs (benefit) over 11 years 
and three months.
 The primary factors of the net balance related to the contributory-
funded pension plan for the Truck Business in nagasaki prefecture in (1)

above comprise the amount of prior service cost in the pension financial 
calculation of ¥695 million ($8,475 thousand) (¥738 million in the prior 
fiscal year) and current surplus of ¥1,277 million ($15,573 thousand) 
(¥1,351 million in the prior fiscal year). The companies will ratably amor-
tize prior service costs (benefit) over 10 years and nine months.
 in addition, the percentage figure disclosed in (2) above does not 
represent the actual obligation attributable to the group.
 The above information related to multi-employer plans is based upon 
the pension financial calculation as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, the most 
recent available date.
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Japanese companies are subject to the companies act of Japan (the “com-
panies act”).  The significant provisions in the companies act that affect 
financial and accounting matters are summarized below: 

(a) Dividends
under the companies act, companies can pay dividends at any time dur-
ing the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at 
the shareholders meeting.  For companies that meet certain criteria such as 
(1) having a Board of directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) hav-
ing a Board of corporate auditors, and (4) the term of service of the 
directors is prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by 
its articles of incorporation, the Board of directors may declare dividends 
(except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the com-
pany has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the com-
pany cannot do so because it does not meet all of the above criteria.
 The companies act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-
kind (non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and 
additional requirements.
 semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon 
resolution by the Board of directors, if the articles of incorporation of the 
company so stipulate. The companies act provides certain limitations on 
the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The 
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the share-
holders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained 
at no less than ¥3 million.

(b)  Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve,  
and surplus

The companies act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends 
must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) 
or as additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending 
on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until 
the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 
25% of the common stock. under the companies act, the total amount 
of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without 
limitation. The companies act also provides that common stock, legal 
reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus, and retained earn-
ings can be transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon 
resolution of the shareholders.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The companies act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock 
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of directors. 
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount avail-
able for distribution to the shareholders, which is determined by a specific 
formula. under the companies act, stock acquisition rights are presented 
as a separate component equity.  
 The companies act also provides that companies can purchase both 
treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. such treasury stock 
acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or 
deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

8. eQuiTY

 The liability for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2012 and 2011, consisted of the following:
 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011 2012

projected benefit obligation ¥ 11,431 ¥ 14,056 $ 139,402
Fair value of plan assets (4,320) (4,140) (52,682)
unrecognized prior service cost 2,909 35,475
unrecognized actuarial gain (488) (448) (5,951)
prepaid pension cost 93 176 1,134
  net liability ¥  9,625 ¥  9,644 $ 117,378

 The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
   

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

  2012 2011 2012

service cost ¥ 652 ¥   820 $  7,951
interest cost 186 231 2,268
expected return on plan assets (91) (109) (1,109)
amortization of prior service cost (323) (3,939)
recognized actuarial loss 235 66 2,865 
  net periodic benefit costs ¥ 660 ¥ 1,009 $  8,048

 assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, are set forth as follows:
 2012 2011

discount rate mainly 1.6% mainly 1.6%
expected rate of return on plan assets mainly 2.0% mainly 2.5%
amortization period of prior service cost 10 years
recognition period of actuarial gain/loss 10 years mainly 10 years
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9. sTock opTions
The stock options outstanding of Takara Bio inc., the company’s consolidated subsidiary, as of March 31, 2012, were as follows:

 
stock option

 
persons granted

number of 
options granted

 
date of grant

 
exercise price

 
exercise period

The First stock option eight directors of subsidiary 
273 employees of subsidiary

3,400,000 shares 2003.9.19 ¥  500
($ 6.09)

From september 20, 2005
to september 20, 2013

The second stock option eight directors of subsidiary 
Three corporate auditors of subsidiary 
120 employees of subsidiary

1,288,000 shares 2003.9.19 ¥  500
($ 6.09)

From april 1, 2004
to september 20, 2013

The Third stock option Three directors of subsidiary
28 employees of subsidiary

200,000 shares 2004.5.17 ¥  500
($ 6.09)

From september 20, 2005
to september 20, 2013

The Fourth stock option nine directors of subsidiary
Three corporate auditors of subsidiary 
eight employees of subsidiary

312,000 shares 2004.5.17 ¥  500
($ 6.09)

From april 1, 2004
to september 20, 2013

 The stock option activity was as follows:
shares

  
For the Year ended March 31, 2012

The First  
stock option

The second  
stock option

The Third  
stock option

The Fourth  
stock option

Vested
 april 1, 2011—outstanding 1,464,000 572,000 44,000 156,000
  Vested
  exercised (4,000)
  canceled (48,000)
 March 31, 2012—outstanding  1,412,000 572,000 44,000 156,000
exercise price ¥  500

($ 6.09)
¥  500

($ 6.09)
¥  500

($ 6.09)
¥  500

($ 6.09)
average stock price at exercise ¥  469

($ 5.71)

 on april 1, 2011, Takara Bio inc., the company’s consolidated subsidiary, made a four hundred-for-one stock split of the common stock. information pre-
sented in note 9 has been restated to reflect the four hundred-for-one stock split.

10. relaTed parTY TransacTions
net sales and purchases representing transactions of the group with associated companies for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows:

   
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011 2012

net sales ¥ 697 ¥ 877 $ 8,500
purchases 69 66 841 

11. researcH and deVelopMenT eXpenses
research and development expenses charged to income were ¥3,027 million ($36,914 thousand) and ¥3,076 million for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively.

12. incoMe TaXes
The company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese 
national and local income taxes, which, in the aggregate, resulted in a 
normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 41% for the years 
ended March 31, 2012  and 2011. overseas subsidiaries are subject to 
income taxes of the countries in which they operate.

 The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss car-
ryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 
31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

  2012 2011 2012

current deferred tax assets:
 inventories ¥   223 ¥   247 $   2,719
 accrued bonuses 762 823 9,292
 accrued sales promotion expenses 649 646 7,914
 Tax loss carryforwards 124 177 1,512
 enterprise tax payable 181 177 2,207
 unrealized profit on sale of inventories 202 214 2,463
 other 219 320 2,670
 less valuation allowance (13) (23) (158)
  Total ¥  2,352 ¥  2,583 $  28,682
current deferred tax liabilities:
 other ¥     6 ¥    14 $     73
  Total ¥     6 ¥    14 $     73
net current deferred tax assets ¥  2,346 ¥  2,568 $  28,609
net current deferred tax liabilities ¥     0  $      0

non-current deferred tax assets:
 retirement benefits ¥  3,437 ¥  4,031 $  41,914
 Tax loss carryforwards 1,713 2,191 20,890
 Marketable and investment securities 467 516 5,695
 depreciation 538 620 6,560
 deduction of foreign corporation tax carried forward 341
 other 777 883 9,475
 less valuation allowance (1,969) (2,853) (24,012)
  Total ¥  4,965 ¥  5,731 $  60,548
non-current deferred tax liabilities:
 unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ¥  1,522 ¥  1,874 $  18,560
 Basis difference of acquired intangible assets 196 258 2,390
 deferred gain on fixed assets 357 386 4,353
 deferred gain on fixed assets inherited by corporate division 537 637 6,548
 other 531 440  6,475
  Total ¥  3,144 ¥  3,595 $  38,341
net non-current deferred tax assets ¥  2,894 ¥  3,404 $  35,292
net non-current deferred tax liabilities ¥  1,074 ¥  1,269 $  13,097

 a reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
income for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, was as follows:

 2012 2011

normal effective statutory tax rate in Japan 41.0% 41.0%
expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 4.8 5.6
(decrease) increase in valuation allowance (3.2) 4.7
effect of change in the normal effective statutory tax rate 7.6
other—net (1.6) (5.2)
actual effective tax rate 48.6% 46.1%

 on december 2, 2011, new tax reform laws were enacted in Japan, 
which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate from approximately 
41% to 38% effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after april 1, 
2012, through March 31, 2015, and to 36% afterwards. The effect of this 

change was to decrease deferred taxes in the consolidated balance sheet as 
of March 31, 2012 by ¥445 million ($5,426 thousand) and to increase 
income taxes—deferred in the consolidated statement of income for the 
year then ended by ¥656 million ($8,000 thousand).

 at March 31, 2012, the company and certain subsidiaries have tax loss carryforwards aggregating to approximately ¥4,890 million ($59,634 thou-
sand), which are available to be offset against taxable income of such subsidiaries. These tax loss carryforwards, if not utilized, will expire as follows:
 
Years ending March 31

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

2014 ¥   166 $  2,024
2015 551 6,719
2018 2,364 28,829
2019 and thereafter 1,807 22,036
  Total ¥ 4,890 $ 59,634
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The group leases certain buildings, machinery, computer equipment, and 
other assets.
 Total rental expenses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, 
were ¥2,131 million ($25,987 thousand) and ¥2,208 million, respectively, 
including ¥279 million ($3,402 thousand) and ¥342 million of lease pay-
ments under finance leases, respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property whose lease inception was 
before March 31, 2008
asBJ statement no. 13, “accounting standard for lease Transactions” 
requires that all finance lease transactions be capitalized to recognize 
lease  assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet. However, asBJ 
statement no. 13 permits leases without ownership transfer of the leased 
property to the lessee and whose lease inception was before March 31, 

2008, to continue to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if 
certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the con-
solidated financial statements. The company applied asBJ statement 
no. 13 effective april 1, 2008, and accounted for such leases as operating 
lease transactions.
 as discussed in note 2.o, the company and its domestic subsidiaries 
account for leases that existed at March 31, 2008 (“the transition date”), 
and which do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee 
as operating lease transactions. pro forma information of such leases 
 existing at the transition date, such as acquisition cost, accumulated 
depreciation, obligations under finance leases, depreciation expense, and 
on a “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, 
was as follows:

“losses from a natural disaster,” which is presented in “other income 
(expenses)” in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 
March 31, 2012, were recorded due to the great east Japan earthquake. 
provision for allowance for losses from a natural  disaster, included in 

“losses from a natural disaster,” was estimated for restoration and other 
expenses related to the earthquake amounting to ¥3 million ($36 thou-
sand) and ¥156 million for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

14. leases

13. losses FroM a naTural disasTer

Millions of Yen

2012

  Buildings and  
structures

Machinery and 
Vehicles

Furniture and 
Fixtures

 
other

 
Total

acquisition cost ¥ 77 ¥ 254 ¥ 308 ¥ 138 ¥ 777
accumulated depreciation 54 225 249 135 664 
  net leased property ¥ 23 ¥  28 ¥  58 ¥   2 ¥ 112

Millions of Yen

2011

  Buildings and  
structures

Machinery and 
Vehicles

Furniture and 
Fixtures

 
other

 
Total

acquisition cost ¥ 77 ¥ 534 ¥ 922 ¥ 138 ¥ 1,672
accumulated depreciation 43 423 705 107 1,279
  net leased property ¥ 34 ¥ 110 ¥ 217 ¥  30 ¥   392

Thousands of u.s. dollars

2012

  Buildings and  
structures

Machinery and  
Vehicles

Furniture and  
Fixtures

 
other 

 
Total

acquisition cost $ 939 $ 3,097 $ 3,756 $ 1,682 $ 9,475
accumulated depreciation 658 2,743 3,036 1,646 8,097 
  net leased property $ 280 $   341 $   707 $    24 $ 1,365

 obligations under finance leases as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows:
 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011  2012

due within one year ¥  83 ¥ 292 $ 1,012
due after one year 32 112 390 
  Total ¥ 115 ¥ 404 $ 1,402

 The amount of obligations under finance leases includes the imputed interest expense portion.
 depreciation expense computed by the straight-line method was ¥279 million ($3,402 thousand) and ¥342 million for the years 
ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

 obligations under operating leases as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, were as follows:
 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

 2012 2011  2012

due within one year ¥   545 ¥   547 $  6,646
due after one year 2,857 3,449 34,841
  Total ¥ 3,403 ¥ 3,996 $ 41,500
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15. conTingenT liaBiliTies
at March 31, 2012, the group was contingently liable for ¥78 million ($951 thousand) of loans guaranteed.

Group policy for financial instruments
The group invests in low-risk financial assets, if it holds cash surpluses. 
The group uses financial instruments, mainly bank loans and bonds, 
based on its capital financing plan. derivatives are used, not for specula-
tive or trading purposes, but to avoid risks as described below.

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and risk 
management for financial instruments
Credit risk and market risk
although receivables, such as notes and trade accounts, are exposed to 
 customer credit risk, the group manages due dates and account balances 
for every customer to identify doubtful receivables early and to mitigate 
default risk.
 although marketable securities, mainly certificates of deposit and 
held-to-maturity securities, are exposed to the credit risks of the bond 
issuers, the credit risk is kept extremely low by limiting funding to short 
maturities and high credit rating bonds. although investment securities, 
mainly stock, are exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations, the 
group reviews the fair values quarterly if investment securities have mar-
ket prices, and manages the financial condition of issuers regularly if they 
do not have market prices.
 payment terms of payables, such as notes and trade accounts, are less 
than three months. although payables in foreign currencies, such as raw 
materials and merchandise, are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation 
in foreign currency exchange rates, those risks are hedged by using cur-
rency options and forward foreign currency contracts.
 Bank loans and bonds are utilized for financing of business transac-
tions and capital investments. payment terms of bank loans and bonds 
are a maximum of 10 years and eight years after the balance sheet date, 
 respectively.
 derivative transactions entered into by the group have been made in 
accordance with internal policies of the Financial department, which 
regulates the authorization, purpose, credit limit amount, evaluation of 
the counterparties, and reporting procedures. derivative transactions 
mainly include forward foreign currency contracts, currency options, and 

 currency swaps for the purpose of hedging against the market risk of fluc-
tuation in foreign currency exchange rates of transactions in foreign cur-
rencies. although derivative transactions are exposed to the market risk of 
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, these transactions are 
made only for the purpose of mitigating the risks of assets, liabilities, and 
transactions that become a hedged item. as the group established a limit 
on contract amounts, the group also believes that the effect of market 
risks to its business administration is not significant. as the group man-
ages its exposure to credit risk by limiting its funding to high credit rating 
bonds, the group recognizes that the exposure to credit risk is extremely low.
 information regarding the valuation method of hedged items and 
hedging instruments related to hedge accounting, hedge policies, and 
hedge effectiveness is included in note 2.s.
Liquidity risk management
in the group, the Financial department develops and updates a plan 
of  cash management pursuant to reporting by each department, and 
manages its liquidity risk by maintaining adequate volumes of liquid 
assets. in addition, subsidiaries also manage their liquidity risks in the 
same manner.
Supplementary explanation about matters related to fair values of 
 financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on the market price in active 
markets or other rational valuation techniques, if a market price does not 
exist. Fair values of financial instruments fluctuate as a result of adopting 
different preconditions because the calculation of fair values include fluc-
tuation factors. With respect to the contract amounts related to derivative 
transactions in note 17, the amounts do not reflect market risks related to 
derivative transactions.
 Fair values of financial instruments are based on the quoted price in 
active markets. if a quoted price is not available, other rational valuation 
techniques are used instead. also see note 17 for the details of fair value 
for derivatives.
Concentration of credit risk
as of March 31, 2012, 48% of total receivables is from three major 
 customers.

16. Financial insTruMenTs and relaTed disclosures

Fair value of financial instruments
 Millions of Yen

 
March 31, 2012

 
carrying amount

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

cash and cash equivalents ¥  30,843 ¥  30,843
notes and accounts receivable 50,651 50,651
Marketable securities and investment securities 30,133 30,133  
  Total ¥ 111,627 ¥ 111,627   
    
notes and accounts payable ¥  13,976 ¥  13,976
short-term bank loans 5,018 5,020 ¥   1
current portion of long-term bonds 5,000 5,026 26
liquor taxes payable 10,589 10,589
accrued income taxes 2,207 2,207
Bonds 20,000 20,701 701
long-term bank loans 496 494 (2)
  Total ¥  57,288 ¥  58,016 ¥ 727
derivatives ¥     (39) ¥     (39)
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Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value 
because of their short maturities.

Notes and accounts receivable
The carrying values of notes and accounts receivable approximate fair 
value because of their short maturities. 

Marketable securities and investment securities 
Marketable securities are mainly certificates of deposit or held-to-matu-
rity securities. The carrying values of marketable securities and invest-
ment securities approximate fair value due to their short maturities.  
investment securities are mainly stock and are measured at the market 
price. Moreover, information regarding the classification of securities is 
included in note 3.
 
Notes and accounts payable
The carrying values of notes and accounts payable approximate fair value 
because of their short maturities.

Liquor taxes payable
The carrying values of liquor taxes payable approximate fair value because 
of their short maturities. 

Accrued income taxes
The carrying values of accrued income taxes approximate fair value 
because of their short maturities. 

Short-term bank loans
The carrying values of short-term bank loans approximate fair value 
because of their short maturities. Moreover, the fair values of the current 
portion of long-term bank loans are determined by discounting the cash 
flows related to the total of principal and interest at a reasonably esti-
mated rate according to the remaining period.

Current portion of long-term bonds and bonds
The fair values of current portion of long-term bonds and bonds are 
determined by discounting the cash flows related to the total of principal 
and interest at the rate in which the remaining period to maturity and 
credit risk are reflected.

Long-term bank loans
The fair values of long-term bank loans are determined by discounting the 
cash flows related to the total of principal and interest at a reasonably 
estimated rate according to the remaining period.

Derivatives
The information of the fair value for derivatives is included in note 17.

 Millions of Yen

 
March 31, 2011

 
carrying amount

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

cash and cash equivalents ¥  32,782 ¥  32,782
notes and accounts receivable 45,023 45,023
Marketable securities and investment securities 27,236 27,236  
  Total ¥ 105,042 ¥ 105,042   
    
notes and accounts payable ¥  13,489 ¥  13,489
short-term bank loans 5,182 5,185 ¥   2
liquor taxes payable 8,065 8,065
accrued income taxes 1,785 1,785
Bonds 25,000 25,478 478
long-term bank loans 561 551 (10)
  Total ¥  54,085 ¥  54,555 ¥ 470
derivatives ¥     (10) ¥     (10)  

 Thousands of u.s. dollars

 
March 31, 2012

 
carrying amount

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

cash and cash equivalents $   376,134 $   376,134   
notes and accounts receivable 617,695 617,695
Marketable securities and investment securities 367,475 367,475  
  Total $ 1,361,304 $ 1,361,304  
    
notes and accounts payable $   170,439 $   170,439
short-term bank loans 61,195 61,219 $    12
current portion of long-term bonds 60,975 61,292 317
liquor taxes payable 129,134 129,134
accrued income taxes 26,914 26,914
Bonds 243,902 252,451 8,548
long-term bank loans 6,048 6,024 (24)
  Total $   698,634 $   707,512 $ 8,865
derivatives $     (475) $     (475)  

 The carrying amounts or account titles do not necessarily correspond with those in the consolidated balance sheets due to the purpose of fair value 
information.
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 investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and securities without contractual maturities (the totals 
included in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2012 and 2011, are ¥3,977 million ($48,500 thousand) and ¥3,955 million, respectively) do not 
have fair values because their fair value cannot be reliably determined. Moreover, deposits from customers do not have fair values because their fair value 
cannot be reliably determined.

Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities
 Millions of Yen Thousands of u.s. dollars

 
March 31, 2012

due in one Year  
or less

due after one Year 
through Five Years

 due in one Year  
or less

due after one Year 
through Five Years

cash and cash equivalents ¥ 30,843 $   376,134
notes and accounts receivable 50,651 617,695
Marketable and investment securities
Held-to-maturity securities:
 (1) corporate bonds 500 6,097
 (2) others 1,999 24,378
available-for-sale securities with contractual maturities:
 (1) government bonds and municipal bonds 453 5,524
 (2) corporate bonds 30 ¥ 2 365 $ 24
 (3) others 12,674  154,560  
  Total ¥ 97,151 ¥ 2 $ 1,184,768 $ 24

The group enters into foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency 
options, and foreign currency swap agreements to hedge foreign exchange risk 
associated with certain liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
 all derivative transactions are entered into to hedge foreign currency 
exposures incorporated within the group’s business. accordingly, market risk 
in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of 
hedged liabilities.

 Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major inter-
national financial institutions, the group does not anticipate any losses aris-
ing from credit risk.
 derivative transactions entered into by the group have been made in 
accordance with internal policies of the Financial department, which regu-
lates the authorization, purpose, credit limit amount, evaluation of the coun-
terparties, and reporting procedures.

17. deriVaTiVes

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
 Millions of Yen

 
at March 31, 2012

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying u.s. dollar ¥ 264 ¥  0 ¥  0
 Buying euro 39 (0) (0)
 Buying British pound 2 (0) (0)
 Buying chinese yuan 167 (0) (0)
 selling euro 99 (1) (1)
non-deliverable forward contracts:
 Buying korean won 4 (0) (0)
 selling korean won 40  (0) (0)
  Total ¥ 619  ¥ (3) ¥ (3)

 Millions of Yen

 
at March 31, 2011

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying euro ¥  17 ¥  0 ¥  0
 selling euro 40 (0) (0)
 selling chinese yuan 20 (0) (0)
non-deliverable forward contracts:
 selling korean won 60  (1) (1)
  Total ¥ 139  ¥ (1) ¥ (1)
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 Thousands of u.s. dollars

 
at March 31, 2012

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

unrealized  
gain/loss

Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying u.s. dollar $ 3,219 $   0 $   0
 Buying euro 475 (0) (0)
 Buying British pound 24 (0) (0)
 Buying chinese yuan 2,036 (0) (0)
 selling euro 1,207 (12) (12)
non-deliverable forward contracts:
 Buying korean won 48 (0) (0)
 selling korean won 487  (0) (0)
  Total $ 7,548  $ (36) $ (36)

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

 Millions of Yen

 
at March 31, 2012

 
Hedged item

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

Foreign currency options:
 Buying call option u.s. dollar payables ¥   927 ¥ (29)
 selling put option u.s. dollar payables 768 21
Foreign currency swaps:
 u.s. dollar advances 58 8
Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying u.s. dollar payable 243 3
 Buying euro payable 9  (0)
  Total  ¥ 2,006 ¥  (5)

 Millions of Yen

 
at March 31, 2011

 
Hedged item

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

Foreign currency options:
 Buying call option u.s. dollar payables ¥ 1,853 ¥   926 ¥ (39)
 selling put option u.s. dollar payables 1,536 768 (3)
Foreign currency swaps:
 u.s. dollar advances 116 58 16
Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying u.s. dollar payable 495 2
 Buying euro payable 10
 Buying euro advances 83  4
  Total  ¥ 4,095 ¥ 1,753 ¥ (19)

 Thousands of u.s. dollars

 
at March 31, 2012

 
Hedged item

 
contract amount

contract amount due 
after one Year

 
Fair Value

Foreign currency options:
 Buying call option u.s. dollar payables $ 11,304  $ (353)
 selling put option u.s. dollar payables 9,365 256
Foreign currency swaps:
 u.s. dollar advances 707 97
Foreign currency forward contracts:
 Buying u.s. dollar payable 2,963 36
 Buying euro payable 109  (0)
  Total  $ 24,463  $   60
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18. coMpreHensiVe incoMe
The components of other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2012, were as follows:

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

2012 2012

unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities:
 gains arising during the year ¥  (381) $  (4,646)
 reclassification adjustments to profit 106 1,292
 amount before income tax effect (274) (3,341)
 income tax effect 327 3,987
   Total ¥    53 $     646

deferred gain on derivatives under hedge accounting:
 gains arising during the year ¥   (76) $    (926)
 acquisition adjustment of asset 106 1,292
 amount before income tax effect 30 365
 income tax effect (12) (146)
   Total ¥    17 $     207

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
 adjustments arising during the year ¥ (895) $ (10,914)
 reclassification adjustments to profit 3 36
   Total ¥  (892) $ (10,878)

share of other comprehensive income in associates:
 gains arising during the year ¥  (23) $    (280)
 reclassification adjustments to profit 5 60
   Total ¥   (18) $    (219)

Total other comprehensive income ¥ (839) $ (10,231)

 The corresponding information for the year ended March 31, 2011, was not required under the accounting standard for presentation of comprehen-
sive income as an exemption for the first year of adopting that standard and not disclosed herein. 

19. neT incoMe per sHare
reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“eps”) for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

 Millions of Yen Thousands of shares Yen u.s. dollars

   
net income

Weighted-average  
shares

 
eps

 
eps

For the year ended March 31, 2012:
 Basic eps
  net income available to common shareholders ¥ 3,995 206,794 ¥ 19.32 $ 0.23

 diluted net income per share for the year ended March 31, 2012, is not disclosed because it is anti-dilutive.

 Millions of Yen Thousands of shares Yen u.s. dollars

   
net income

Weighted-average  
shares

 
eps

 
eps

For the year ended March 31, 2011:
 Basic eps
  net income available to common shareholders ¥ 3,788 208,048 ¥ 18.21
 effect of dilutive securities
  stock option
 diluted eps
  net income for computation ¥ 3,788  208,048  ¥ 18.21  
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20. suBseQuenT eVenTs
a. Appropriations of retained earnings
on May 9, 2012, the Board of directors of the company resolved to propose a cash dividend of ¥9.0 ($0.1) per share to shareholders of record as of March 31, 
2012, or a total of ¥1,851 million ($22,573 thousand), for approval at the general shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 28, 2012.
 appropriations of retained earnings as of March 31, 2012, are as follows:

 
 

 
Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
u.s. dollars

cash dividends, ¥9.0 ($0.1) per share ¥ 1,851 $ 22,573

b. Issuance of unsecured bonds
on april 26, 2012, the company issued ¥5,000 million ($60,975 thousand) 
of 12th unsecured bonds, at the issue price of 100% of the face value of the 
bonds. The bonds bear interest at the rate of 0.468% per annum for the 
period from april 26, 2012, to april 26, 2017.

 on april 26, 2012, the company issued ¥5,000 million ($60,975 thou-
sand) of 13th unsecured bonds, at the issue price of 100% of the face value of 
the bonds. The bonds bear interest at the rate of 1.162% per annum for the 
period from april 26, 2012, to april 26, 2022.

under asBJ statement no. 17, “accounting standard for segment infor-
mation disclosures” and issued asBJ guidance no. 20, “guidance on 
accounting standard for segment information disclosures” an entity is 
required to report financial and descriptive information about its report-
able segments. reportable segments are operating segments or aggrega-
tions of operating segments that meet specified criteria. operating 
segments are  components of an entity about which separate financial 
information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by 
the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources 
and in assessing performance. generally, segment information is required 
to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operat-
ing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to oper-
ating segments.

1. Description of reportable segments 
The group consists of two major corporate groups centered on the 
 operating companies, Takara shuzo co., ltd., and Takara Bio inc., both 
of which were formed when the company became a holding company. 
The other corporate groups consist of the health food business, which is 
managed by Takara Healthcare inc.; the company, which manages the 
whole group as the holding company; and the remaining businesses, 
which are not attributable to the above. all operating companies develop 
comprehensive business strategies, covering both domestic and overseas 
operations, for the products and services that they offer, and work to 
expand their business operations.

 accordingly, the group has defined three reportable segments based 
on its operating segments, while taking into consideration the relation-
ship of capital between each consolidated subsidiary, the scope of mana-
gerial responsibility, and of the capacity to evaluate business performance. 
These three reportable segments are the Takara shuzo group, the Takara 
Bio group, and Takara Healthcare.
 The group’s reportable segments are those for which separate finan-
cial information is available and such information is evaluated regularly 
by the company’s management in deciding how to allocate resources and 
in assessing performance.
 The Takara shuzo group primarily engages in the manufacturing 
and sales of alcoholic beverages and seasonings. it also engages in logistics 
and other related businesses. The Takara Bio group primarily engages in 
the manufacturing and sales of products, such as research reagents, scien-
tific instruments, and mushrooms. it also conducts contract research ser-
vices. Takara Healthcare primarily engages in the sales of products, such 
as health foods.  

2.  Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets, 
and other items for each reportable segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with 
those disclosed in note 2, “summary of significant accounting policies.”

21. segMenT inForMaTion

3. Information about sales, profit (loss), assets, and other items is as follows.

 Millions of Yen

 2012

reportable segment

  Takara shuzo  
group

Takara Bio 
group

Takara  
Healthcare

 
Total

 
other

 
reconciliations

 
consolidated

sales:
 sales to external customers ¥ 174,726 ¥ 18,934 ¥ 2,334 ¥ 195,995 ¥ 2,329 ¥    365 ¥ 198,690
  intersegment sales or transfers 777 644 3 1,424 5,375 (6,800)
  Total 175,503 19,578 2,338 197,420 7,704 (6,434) 198,690
segment profit 6,768 1,547 (114) 8,201 190 873 9,264
segment assets 122,993 44,032 818 167,844 7,723 21,869 197,437
other:
 depreciation 3,225 1,077 12 4,315 112 3 4,431
 amortization of goodwill 146 124 271 271
  investment in equity  

 method affiliate 296 296 20 2,470 2,786
  increase in property, plant,  

  and equipment and  
intangible assets 2,743 926 32 3,702  2,252 (624) 5,330 
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 Millions of Yen

 2011

reportable segment

  Takara shuzo  
group

Takara Bio 
group

Takara  
Healthcare

 
Total

 
other

 
reconciliations

 
consolidated

sales:
 sales to external customers ¥ 165,872 ¥ 18,197 ¥ 2,563 ¥ 186,633 ¥ 2,790 ¥    345 ¥ 189,769
  intersegment sales or transfers 918 540 4 1,462 5,418 (6,880)
  Total 166,790 18,737 2,567 188,095 8,208 (6,535) 189,769
segment profit 6,568 1,097 (252) 7,413 219 702 8,335
segment assets 118,314 42,594 646 161,555 6,359 24,533 192,448
other:
 depreciation 3,284 1,122 10 4,416 117 17 4,551
 amortization of goodwill 64 136 201 38 239
  investment in equity  

 method affiliate 304 304 20 2,440 2,766
  increase in property, plant,  

  and equipment and  
intangible assets 2,735 928  3,663 70 1 3,735

 Thousands of u.s. dollars

 2012

reportable segment

  Takara shuzo  
group

Takara Bio 
group

Takara  
Healthcare

 
Total

 
other

 
reconciliations

 
consolidated

sales:
 sales to external customers $ 2,130,804 $ 230,902 $ 28,463 $ 2,390,182 $ 28,402 $   4,451 $ 2,423,048
  intersegment sales or transfers 9,475 7,853 36 17,365 65,548 (82,926)
  Total 2,140,280 238,756 28,512 2,407,560 93,951 (78,463) 2,423,048
segment profit 82,536 18,865 (1,390) 100,012 2,317 10,646 112,975
segment assets 1,499,914 536,975 9,975 2,046,878 94,182 266,695 2,407,768
other:
 depreciation 39,329 13,134 146 52,621 1,365 36 54,036
 amortization of goodwill 1,780 1,512 3,304 3,304
  investment in equity  

 method affiliate 3,609 3,609 243 30,121 33,975
  increase in property, plant,  

  and equipment and  
intangible assets 33,451 11,292 390 45,146 27,463 (7,609) 65,000 

notes: 1. “other” represents operating segments that are not included in the reportable segments, and comprises other subsidiaries, including a printing business.
 2. details of “reconciliations” are as follows:
  (1) sales to external customers are income from real estate rent recognized by the company.
  (2)  segment profit includes eliminations of intersegment transactions of ¥61 million ($743 thousand) and ¥103 million, and income of the company not allocated to operating segments 

of ¥811 million ($9,890 thousand) and ¥637 million as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
  (3)  segment assets include assets of the company not allocated to operating segments of ¥27,771 million ($338,670 thousand) and ¥29,882 million, and other adjustment (principally 

 eliminations of intersegment transactions) of ¥(5,902) million ($(71,975) thousand) and ¥(5,348) million as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  assets attributed to the com-
pany include surplus funds and long-term investment assets.

 3. segment profit has been adjusted to the operating income in the consolidated statements of income.
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To the Board of directors of Takara Holdings inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Takara Holdings inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2012, and the 
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
conformity with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
 an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Takara Holdings inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2012, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash 
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation
our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into u.s. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation 
has been made in conformity with the basis stated in note 1. such u.s. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of 
readers outside Japan.

June 8, 2012

June 8, 2012

independenT audiTors’ reporT

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC
Shijokarasuma FT Square
20, Naginataboko-cho
Karasuma-higashiiru, Shijo-dori
Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto 600-8008
Japan

Tel:  +81 (75) 222 0181
Fax: +81 (75) 231 2703
www.deloitte.com/jp
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Investor Information
As of March 31, 2012

Trade Name Takara Holdings Inc.

Business Holding company

Head Office  20 Naginataboko-cho, Shijo-dori Karasuma Higashi-
iru, Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto 600-8688, Japan

Telephone 075-241-5130

Common Stock
 Authorized 870,000,000 shares
 Issued and Outstanding 217,699,743 shares

Number of Shareholders 28,781

Stock listings (Common Stock) Tokyo, Osaka

Securities Code Number 2531

Shareholder Registry 
Administrator

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., ltd. 
2-1, Yaesu 1-chome, Chuo-ku,  
Tokyo

Inquiries to Shareholder Registry 
Administrator

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., ltd.  
Stock Agency Transfer department 
8-4, Izumi 2-chome, Suginami-ku,  
Tokyo 168-8507, Japan
Telephone: 0120-288-324  
(toll free, within Japan only)

Annual Meeting of Shareholders The annual meeting of shareholders 
of the Company is normally held in 
June each year in Kyoto, Japan. In 
addition, the Company may hold a 
special meeting of shareholders 
whenever necessary by giving at least 
two weeks, advance notice to 
shareholders.

Independent Auditor deloitte Touche Tohmatsu llC

Principal Shareholders

Name
Number of Shares 
Held (Thousands)

Percentage of  
Shares Held (%)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, ltd. (Trust Account) 11,517 5.29

Mizuho Corporate Bank, ltd. 9,738 4.47

Japan Trustee Services Bank, ltd. (Trust Account) 9,568 4.40

The Norinchukin Bank 9,500 4.36

Meiji Yasuda life Insurance Company 5,370 2.47

Bank of Kyoto, ltd. 5,000 2.30

KOKuBu & CO., lTd. 3,489 1.60

Takara Group employees’ Shareholding Association 3,063 1.41

Japan Alcohol Trading Co., ltd. 3,000 1.38

JPMorgan Securities Japan Co., ltd. 2,855 1.31

Notes:  (1) Number of shares is rounded down to the nearest thousand.
 (2)  In addition to the shareholdings listed above, the Company held treasury stock
  totaling 12,008,889 shares (equivalent to 5.52% of voting rights).

Bond Ratings

Rating Institution long-Term Rating Short-Term Rating

Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I) A/Stable a-1
Japan Credit Rating Agency, ltd. (JCR) A/Stable J-1

established September 6, 1925

Issued Capital ¥13,226 million

Company Representative Toshio Kakimoto, President  
 (As of June 28, 2012)

Website http://www.takara.co.jp/english/

Stock and Investor Information

Stock Price Range on the Tokyo Stock exchange (Yen)

 Financial Institutions 38.83%
 Securities Companies 4.77%
 Other domestic Companies 17.15%
 Foreign Investors 7.32%
 Individual and Others 26.42%
 Others 5.52%

distribution of Ownership among Shareholders



20 Naginataboko-cho, Shijo-dori Karasuma Higashi-iru, 
Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto 600-8688, Japan
Telephone: 075-241-5130

www.takara.co.jp/english/

A portion of the printing costs for this printing paper is donated to the “Japanese Red Cross Society.”
The method of printing for this annual report was chosen to reduce its environmental impact.
It is printed by offset printing using vegetable oil ink without the use of water.
This report was printed using power that was carbon-offset using the Kyoto eco point model program.

Printed in Japan
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